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CORPORATE INFORMATION (confinued)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
87 5 18 2

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETIT ARETT

Consolidated Results mEEE
Turnover S 676,609 444,255 357,156
Profit before taxation % & BT A E 137,948 62,023 69,071
Taxation Fi1| (22,835) 13,941 (15,655)
Profit for the year & %5 18 A E 115,113 48,082 53,416
Total comprehensive FNERE F B
income for the year 115,100 47,413 52,613
Financial Positions B AR OR
Total assets BEE 707,908 521,010 453,459
Total liabilities BEE (494,441) (373,963) (186,439)
Net assets BEFE 213,467 147,047 267,020
Represented by: FEAS
Shareholders’ equity A% R 2= 213,467 147,047 267,020
Turnover Profit before taxation
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ERITAE

\_ FREHS -

The Group is the largest provider of financial cards in terms of
sales value and the largest card personalisation services provider
in terms of sales value and sales volume. The Group is also the
second largest provider of card issuance system in Greater China.

THEZAPEEEANERFHETN < HEA
LHRBREME TRAPEEF-ABRFRGEHR

Goldpac Group Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), is a leading supplier of financial cards (in the form of magnetic
strip cards or smart cards), card personalisation services and card
issuance system solutions in Greater China. On 4 December 2013, the
Company (Stock Code: 3315) was successfully listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Group is the only financial card manufacturer and the only card
personalisation services provider in the PRC certified by all six of the
leading worldwide payment card organizations (Visa, MasterCard,
American Express, UnionPay, JCB and Diners Club). The Group is
principally engaged in providing secured solutions and services for
financial institutions, government agencies and other organizations that
issue financial cards.

The Group was founded in 1995 with its major subsidiary and
headquarter based in Zhuhai, Guangdong, China. Currently, the Group
has more than 1,500 employees and the operation facility in Zhuhai has a
total gross floor area of approximately 24,900 sg.m. Moreover, the Group
has another operation facility in Shanghai, with gross floor area of
approximately 2,960 sg.m. Both operation facilities operate 24 hours a
day to provide continuous services to our customers. After almost 19
years of dedicated development, the Group has built a stable, strong and
diverse customer base within Greater China, with many of the leading
national and regional state-owned and joint-stock commercial banks, as
well as foreign banks. Our customer base has wide geographic coverage
across the PRC and Asia Pacific.
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With rich experiences in the card industry and strong research, design
and development capabilities, the Group is dedicated to offer one-stop
solutions with high value-added services to our customers from
consulting, product design, manufacturing, card personalisation, data
processing and execution capabilities.

The Group will continue to strengthen its research and development
capabilities to continue our success and maintain our ability to develop
application solutions to meet the changing needs of financial institutions,
government departments or agencies and business enterprises. Such
research and development capabilities also enable us to continue to
upgrade our existing application solutions in response to the changes in
technological developments and thus create profits to our shareholders.

CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2013
2013F K5

March 38

In March 20183, Zhuhai Municipal Post Office
set up a presence operating within our
headquarters.

20134 3 A
BUHR

.~

KRBT ERRBER A

In June

Award.

June 68

2018, Goldpac Secur-Card

(Zhuhai) Limited nominated in the ICMA
Annual Best Financial Smart Card

2013F6 A HEME HERE

AR ARLEICMARE & FREthe
2013 FERELRRAEE -

s

August 8H

In August 2013, Goldpac Secur-Card
(Zhuhai) Limited was recognised as
“Guangdong Service Outsourcing
Cultivate Enterprise” by “Guangdong
Service Outsourcing Industry
Association”.

2013F8A  HKEMEHBEREF
ERARWERERBINBEHX(E
EERERBEREREINBELE
Blh¥-

Throughout 2000-2012, Goldpac Secur-
Card (Zhuhai) Limited named by
Guangdong Administration Bureau for
Industry and Commerce as an enterprise
with high reputation and credit for 13
consecutive years.
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September 98

In September 2013, GemGold PBOC2.0
Common Payment Card was certified as
National Major New Product.

201349 A © H M PBOC2.01ZE # Hy
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BRETES ©

HET T T i ST [ [ eeee—

BEidd EESEEaEE s WdEE O i
LI T

EAHEL wrarw

S®H®



MAJOR EVENTS IN 2013 (continued)

2013 oC (i@
October 108 EECR

In October 2013, the expansion
of our Shanghai Personalisation
Service Center was completed.
The newly-expanded area was

put into operation in December November 1 1 ﬁ
2018. The productivity of our
facilities in Shanghai has been
increased substantially.

2013%10A + @ AL+
DEHEFRIAR B 127
BRIRE EBEAALEFRL
EfLRNIBEIRF - In November 2013, the 3rd production base of

In December 2013, Goldpac

our Zhuhai Operation Facility was put into 7 ——
operation. The production capability of smart gor:jtac;tless Smartd gard
cards has been greatly expanded. R, °VETCCRnas %
Guangdong Famous Brand
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On 4 December 2013, the Company was listed =
successfully on the Main Board of the Stock In 2013, Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai)
Exchange. Limited became the first smart card
\ N provider certified both by American
201312848 - RARIKMEMZTER £ Express and Diners Club in China.
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General

Information

The only
manufacturer in the
PRC certified by all
six of the leading
payment card
organizations.

The largest provider
of financial cards in
terms of sales value
in Greater China.
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year 2013”). This has been the first
annual results of the Company since its listing on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 4 December 2013 (the “Listing Date”).

The year of 2013 was a milestone in the developing history of the Group.
With persistent commitment and dedication, the Company was listed
successfully on the Stock Exchange in December 2013 as an enterprise
in the technology and media telecommunication industry. Although the
financial card market of Greater China developed substantially in the year
2013, the competition became increasingly fierce. The Group was still
able to rely on its own advantages and seized the opportunities to
maintain steady growth.

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
reached RMB1,112,260 thousand, achieving a growth of 64% compared
with that of RMB676,609 thousand in the previous year. The overall
income, the overall profit and the shareholders’ net profit of the Company
all grew steadily, achieving a growth of 64%, 47% and 22.3% respectively
compared with that of the previous year. Due to the adjustment of the
structure of its product mix, the gross profit margin of the Company for
the Year 2013 was 29.1%, decreasing slightly by 1% compared to that
of the previous year. To fulfill the dividend policy as disclosed during the
time of the Listing which the dividend should be no less than 20% of net
profit, the Board proposed to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK4.8 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB3.8 cents) per ordinary
Share for the Year 2013.

ERMBEMURR
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Looking back on the year of 2013, the Group carried out its initial
business plan from the beginning until the end of the year, seized the
market opportunities actively, and adjusted the structure of its product
mix. In order to meet the market’s abundant needs, the Group expanded
its production facilities of 11,500 sg.m. in Zhuhai and 2,100 sg.m. in
Shanghai to assure the prompt delivery of the increasing orders of
financial smart cards and also to be ready for the anticipated mass
issuances of financial smart cards in China and Asia Pacific Area in the
next coming years. Moreover GemGold PBOC2.0 Common Payment
Card was certified as National Major New Product which represented the
development of the Group’s technology innovation strength to a new
level. It also enhanced the Group’s market competitiveness and
strengthened the Group’s leadership in the industry.

Looking forward to the future, with the high speed development of
Chinese financial smart card market, the Group will seize market
opportunities and continue its close cooperations with its customers and
other market participants with its current competition advantages in the
industry worldwide. The Group will also expand its current production
facilities, boost capacity, and explore innovative value-added card
solution services to satisfy its customers’ needs, and to maintain the
stable increase of turnover of the Group.
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Furthermore, based on the existing payment tools, the Group will develop
its business in the future by keeping abreast of the latest development in
electronic payment and researching new and innovative ideas to expand
its business in line with the ever-changing payment technology. The
Group will widen its product range and enhance the security technology
of its products. The Group will also enhance the cooperation with its
strategic partners to further develop its smart cards applications and new
electronic payment products. The Group will actively consider expanding
its overseas markets to improve profit margins and thus create more
value for its shareholders.

Finally, | hereby on behalf of the Company extend my heartfelt
appreciation to all shareholders, the members of the Board, the
management team, employees and business partners of the Company.

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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With the rapid development of financial cards market in Greater China,
the competition became fierce in the Year 2013. The Group continued to
seize market opportunities with its current competitive advantages such
as high quality of products and services, comprehensive product range
and consolidated solution program specialised for customers’ needs,
experienced customer service capability, great research, design and
innovation ability etc., and ensured the stable increase of turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company’s turnover reached
RMB1,112,260 thousands, with a growth rate of 64% compared with
that of RMB676,609 thousands in 2012. The profit before listing
expenses and finance costs reached RMB212,738 thousand, with a
growth rate of 47% compared with that of RMB144,767 thousand in
2012; the net profit was RMB140,826 thousand with a growth rate of
22.3% compared with that of RMB115,100 thousand in 2012. Due to the
adjustment of the structure of product mix, the gross profit margin of the
Company for the Year 2013 was 29.1%, decreasing slightly by 1%
compared to that of the previous year. The profit attributed to the
shareholder of the Company was RMB140,826 thousand, the basic
earnings per share for the year 2013 was RMB26.4 cents per share.

For the year ended December 2013, the Group actively seized the market
opportunities for developing its business and timely adjusted the structure
of its product mix. Therefore, the three main business segments of the
Company kept steady growth. The turnover of the magnetic strip cards
and smart cards business increased to RMB897,141 thousand with an
annual growth rate of 80%; and the gross profit of such business was
RMB225,314 thousand with gross profit margin rate of 25.1%. The
business of personalisation solutions services rose to RMB114,657
thousand with an annual growth rate of 40%; and the gross profit of such
business was RMB53,888 thousand with gross profit margin rate of 47%.
The turnover of card issurance system solutions and related solutions
services was RMB100,462 thousands with an annual growth rate of 5.2%;
and the gross profit of such business was RMB44,592 thousand with
gross profit margin rate of 44.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Healthy development of the financial card industry
due to favorable market environment and
governmental policies

The Chinese economy continued to maintain a steady growth
7.7% with the disposable income per capita in China reaching
RMB18,311 in 2013 and representing an annual growth rate
of 8.1%. With the growth of the GDP in China, the
urbanization in China, and the continuous growth of the
disposable income of the urban households in China, the
Chinese consumer market witnessed rapid expansion and
thus the demand for non-cash payment services, especially
financial cards, rose. As a result, the number of newly-issued
financial cards and number of cardholders increased.

Meanwhile, the Chinese Government adopted policies to
accelerate the conversion rate of financial cards from
magnetic strip cards to smart cards. For example, “People’s
Bank of China on Promoting the Work of Financial IC Card
Applications” ( (B ARIRITRANHESRICRERTIER
&) ) issued on 31 March 2011 required the termination of
issuance of magnetic strip cards from 1 January 2015,
promoting the conversion to and the use of financial smart
cards.

Besides, smart cards had been widely promoted in the non-
financial areas, such as social security, health, medical
treatment and transportation etc. The Chinese Government
also supported and promoted information consumption,
encouraging the use of smart cards as a type of modern
payment method.
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With almost 19 years of experience in the market, the Group,
as the leading provider of financial cards, card personalisation
services and card issuance system solutions in the Greater
China, is the only financial card manufacturer and the only
card personalisation services provider in the PRC certified by
all six of the leading worldwide payment card organisations
(Visa, MasterCard, American Express, UnionPay, JCB and
Diners Club). The Group has adopted strict and superior
physical and logical security standard recognized by the
aforesaid six major organizations and invested large amount
of manpower and resources for such security standards. The
Company strictly complies with the logical security standard
in terms of data transmission, entry, storage and destruction,
and with the physical security standard in terms of hardware
facilities, personnel access at the plant area, surveillance etc.
to attain recognition and trust of its customers and thus
ensures the growth of the turnover of the Company.

The Group has Research and Development (“R&D”) centres
in Zhuhai and Beijing, with over 260 employees and a majority
of them having attained tertiary education and more than 6
years of experience in the R&D area. The R&D team can
execute R&D work independently in multiple sectors,
including card design, design of personalised solutions,
development and testing card operating systematic software
and personal data processing software. In addition, the
Group has entered into an agreement with Wuhan University (i,
& KE), and cooperated with colleges and student research
institute to develop new technologies related to businesses of
the Company, ensuring the remarkable design and R&D
capability of the Group to strengthen competitiveness of the
Company.

In order to meet the great demand in card issuance, the
Group expanded the manufacturing facilities in Zhuhai and
Shanghai in 2013. The Company obtained an additional
11,500 sg.m. of production area with Phase Il of the
manufacturing facilities in Zhuhai being put into operation in
the fourth quarter of 2013 and another 2,100 sg.m. of
production area in Shanghai to ensure the punctual delivery
of the rising number of orders for the financial smart cards
and cater for the massive issuance of smart cards in Asia
Pacific Area in the coming years.
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The Group strictly controlled and sought to reduce its production
cost by purchasing from local raw material suppliers with large-
scale procurement and enhancing production efficiency. Due to the
change of the Group’s structure of its product mix, the proportion
of smart cards with lower gross profit rate but higher gross profit
per card increased, so the cost of sales out of turnover was 70.9%
for the Year 2018, increased slightly compared with that of 69.9%
for the Year 2012.

The expenditure of the Group comprises R&D expenses and other
operating expenses, etc.

The R&D expenses and other operating expenses in the year 2013
was RMB136,156 thousand, representing an increase of 62.3%
compared to that of RMB83,871 thousand in the year 2012.

The R&D expenses in the year 2013 was RMB46,754 thousand,
representing an increase of 64% compared to that of RMB28,548
thousand in the year 2012. The rise in R&D expenses was mainly
due to the reinforcement of the R&D strength by increasing R&D
manpower and investment on R&D instruments.

Other operating expenses were RMB89,402 thousand in the Year
2013, representing an increase of 61.6% compared to that of
RMB55,323 thousand in the year 2012. The rise in other operating
expenses was mainly because the business of smart cards
remained at a preliminary marketing stage. In order to assist its
customers to conduct migration to smart cards, the Company
employed a large number of employees to conduct pre-sale and
after-sale services and thus increased the expenditure on travelling
and marketing.

The Listing expenses were RMB15,837 thousand. The non-cash
finance charge on share repurchase obligations was RMB11,513
thousand, which was reclassified to equity upon Listing.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current assets reached
RMB1,801,919 thousand, achieving a growth of 193.8% compared with
that of RMB613,344 thousand for the year 2012. The current ratio of the
Group for the year 2013 was 3.3, representing a very good liquidity.

The Group’s aggregate amount of bank loans and amounts due to
related companies was RMB15,316 thousand (2012: RMB48,342
thousand); the gearing ratio was 1.1% (2012: 22.6%). (Gearing ratio is
equivalent to total debt divided by total equity as at the end of the year.
Total debt includes all interest-bearing bank loans and loans from/
amounts due to related parties.) The Group’s leverage ratio was 28.2%
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 69.8%). (The leverage is equivalent to
total liabilities divided by total assets as at the end of the year.)

The Group had no significant investments during the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Group had no future plans for material investments or capital assets
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Please refer to Note 6 to the audited consolidated financial statement (the
“Consolidated Financial Statements”) of the Group for the Year 2013.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from the global
offering of approximately RMB974,609 thousand (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). None of the net
proceeds had been utilized as of 31 December 2013.
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The Company does not intend to apply any of net proceeds for the
purposes other than those disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 4 December 2013 (the “Prospectus”).

Details of the capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December 2013
are set out in Note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page
141 of this Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Details of the pledged assets (RMB27,894 thousand) of the Group as at
31 December 2013 are set out in Note 24 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 122 to page 123 of this Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2013, details of movements in the share capital of
the Group are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 on
pages 132 to 134 of this Annual Report.

Human resources are one of the most important assets of the Company.
As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 1,561 employees (1,328 in
2012), with an increase of 233 employees compared with that in 2012.
The new members of staff included a number of experienced and
capable engineers who joined the R&D team and other employees who
mainly joined the smart cards production team and personalisation
service solution team.

Apart from offering competitive remuneration packages, the Company is
also committed to providing specialised staff development and training
programs. Generally, salary review is conducted annually. Other than
basic salaries, the Company makes contributions for its employees in
relation to the mandatory social security funds, pension, work-related
injury insurance, maternity insurance, medical and unemployment
insurance in accordance with applicable laws and regulations of the PRC.
The Company also provides full coverage of housing provident fund
contributions to its employees as required by local regulations in the
PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Looking Forward

Looking forward to the future, with the completion of the technological
development of smart cards and the circulation of smart cards in 2013
that was far beyond market expectation, the market for smart cards is
expected to expand quickly in the coming years. As the year of 2015 is
fast approaching, the regulators will promote the compulsory migration to
EMV cards (Europay, MasterCard and Visa) and thus enhance the
development of the market for smart cards. In addition, the major banks
will enhance the progress of the conversion to EMV cards due to market
competition and thus promote the development of the market for smart
cards. We believe that the blooming market for smart cards will widen the
market’s need for the products of the Group and thus help the Group to
maintain a steady growth of revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Meanwhile, the Company will also seize the market opportunities with its
current competitive advantages, such as high quality of products and
services, comprehensive product range and consolidated solution
program specialised for customers’ needs, experienced customer service
capability, great research, design and innovation abilities, to continue
providing comprehensive electronic payment solution for customers in
respect of financial smart card personalisation service and card issuance
system solutions.

Furthermore, based on the existing payment tools, the Group will develop
its business in the future by keeping abreast of the latest development in
electronic payment and researching new and innovative ideas to expand
its business in line with the ever-changing payment technology. The
Group will widen its product range and enhance the security technology
of its products. The Group will also enhance the cooperation with its
strategic partners to further develop its smart cards applications and new
electronic payment products. The Group will actively consider expanding
its overseas markets to improve profit margins and thus create more
value for its shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
sENSHREER

Directors =5

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including four executve EZEZEE€HNLELEZTHAK BFENZHNTE
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non- = —ZIHITE S — LB/ I IFEHITE
executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain information == LA TRIEAZESZTEH

relating to the Directors:

Name Age Group Position
% & Fir EEBK

Executive Directors

BITES
LU Run Ting 59 Chairman & Executive Director
EFE FTRERNITES
HOU Ping 53 Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
& F MITEEREEATE
LU Runyi 56 Executive Director & Senior Vice President
EEA BITEE RS REIEE
LU Xiaozhong 45 Executive Director & Senior Vice President
EhR BITESE R = REIEH
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Christophe Jacques PAGEZY 55 Non-executive Director
FEMITES
TING Tao | 51 Non-executive Director
TE— FEMITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
MAK Wing Sum Alvin 61 Independent Non-executive Director
2K R BIUERITES
ZHU Lijun 60 Independent Non-executive Director
KRIUE BIUERITES
LIU John Jianhua 63 Independent Non-executive Director

Bl BEMITES



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. LU Run Ting (ERE£), aged 59, is the chairman and an executive
Director of the Group, and the founder of the Group. He was first
appointed as Director on 10 December 2004 and was designated as
an executive Director with effect from 15 November 2013. Chairman LU
is primarily responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of the Group. He has approximately 20 years
of experience in the business of the financial card industry. He has been
the chairman of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, Goldpac
Datacard Solutions Company Limited (“Goldpac Datacard”) and
Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited (“Goldpac Secur-Card”), since
2011. He was the managing director and a Director of the Group from
2004 to 2011 and also served as the vice chairman and president of
both Goldpac Datacard and Goldpac Secur-Card from 2000 to 2011 and
1995 to 2011 respectively.

Prior to establishing the Group in 1995, Chairman LU was interested
in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL”), the Company’s
controlling shareholder, since 1993 and provided card issuance system
solutions. Chairman LU also served various positions at the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China prior to the establishment of GIHL in 1993,
where he was a deputy division manager and division manager at its
Zhuhai branch, general manager of its trust investment company at its
Zhuhai branch and the general manager of its credit card company. He
currently also serves as the chairman of GIHL, a standing director of the
information technology professional committee of the China Association
for Labor Studies (FEILEIZE{ZE(LEXZE®). Chairman LU
received a Master of Business Administration degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2004. Chairman LU had not
been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas
in the past three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% of GIHL, the Company’s
controlling shareholder. Chairman LU is the elder brother of Mr. LU Runyi,
who is an executive Director.

Mr. HOU Ping (&%), aged 53, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Group, and joined the Group in 2011. He was first
appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011 and was designated as an
executive Director with effect from 15 November 2013. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over
30 years of experience in the banking industry, of which, over 14 years
of experience in the card industry. He has been a Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has served as a director
of Goldpac Datacard and a director and the chief executive officer of
Goldpac Secur-Card since 2011.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

SENSHRERE @

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card centre at
Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to Huaxia Bank as
chief executive officer of the credit card centre from 2006 to 2011. Mr.
HOU served various positions at Bank of China group and subsequently,
BOC Credit Card (International) Limited since 1999, including as deputy
general manager of BOC Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong
from 1999 to 2004. He also currently serves as an independent director
of the Huijin Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (k& £ RIS B R A 7).
Mr. HOU received a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003. Mr. HOU had not been
a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the
past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi (E818), aged 56, is an executive Director and a senior
vice president of the Group, and joined the Group in 1995. He was
first appointed as a Director in December 2004 and was designated as
an executive Director with effect from November 2013. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the sales department of the Group.
Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 20 years of experience in the financial
cards industry. He has been a senior vice president of the Group since
2004 and was a Director of the Company from 2004 to 2010. He has
also been a director of Goldpac Datacard, a director and senior vice
president of Goldpac Secur-Card since 2011, August 2011 and 2004
respectively. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Chairman LU, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Group.

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (E/) &), aged 45, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in 1995. He
was first appointed as a Director on 21 May 2013 and was designated
as an executive Director with effect from 15 November 2013. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the corporate business,
management, quality and security department of the Group. Mr. LU has
approximately 19 years of experience in the card industry. He has been
a director of the Company, Goldpac Datacard and Goldpac Secur-Card
since 2013. He has been a general manager of the corporate business
management department, senior vice president and the chief officer of
the information security division of Goldpac Secur-Card since 2012. He
also served various positions at Goldpac Secur-Card, including general
manager of the production technology centre, general manager of the
operation division and a manager of the production division, from 2009 to
2012, 2001 to 2009 and 1995 to 2001, respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. LU has been an external expert consultant of China UnionPay since
2010 and was a manager of Jesmay (Zhongshan) Electronics Co.,
Ltd.* (REEFLEBEFAHRAR) from 1992 to 1995. He has served
as a member of the Economic Crime Consultancy expert team of the
Zhuhai Police Bureau. Through these appointments, he has gained the
relevant experience in handling compliance, quality control and managing
confidential information and intellectual property right of customers. Mr.
LU graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the P.R.C. (_E)&
R BAEZ) with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Polymer Materials in
July 1990 and received a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006.

Mr. LU had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY, aged 55, is a non-executive
Director, and joined the Group in 2009. He was first appointed as a
Director on 23 March 2009 and was designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 15 November 2013. Mr. PAGEZY was the
chairman of the Company from 2009 to 2011.

Mr. Christophe PAGEZY is the board representative nominated by Gemalto N.V.
(“Gemalto”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, to the Board. He
was also the executive vice president of Gemalto, in charge of corporate
projects from 2007 to the 6 January 2014. Gemalto is a company
incorporated under the laws of Netherlands, whose shares are listed
and traded on New York Stock Exchange Euronext Amsterdam and
New York Stock Exchange Euronext Paris respectively. Mr. Christophe
PAGEZY graduated from the Ecole Supérieure d’Electricité with a
Diploma in Engineering in July 1981 and from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology with a Master of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science in June 1982. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr.
PAGEZY had not been a director of any other companies in Hong Kong
or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. TING Tao | (T3i#&—), aged 51, is a non-executive Director, and
joined the Group in 2013. He was first appointed as a Director on 4 July
2013 and was designated as a non-executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. He is the board representative nominated by BOCI
Investment Limited (“BOCI Investment”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, to the Board.

Mr. TING is currently the head of the private equity division of BOC
International Holdings Limited and is in charge of the private equity
investment and fund management business. Mr. TING received a Master
of Business Administration degree from the New York University in the
United States in 1993. Mr. TING had not been a director of any other
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (k) (also known as Mr. MAK Wing
Sum), aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined
the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MAK currently has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Hong Kong Television Network Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), I.T Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 999), Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 590)
and Lai Fung Holdings Limited a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 1125). Mr. MAK, after working in Citibank for over 26 years,
went into his retirement in April 2012 where he last served as the head
of markets and banking for Citibank Hong Kong. Whilst at Citibank, he
has held various senior positions, including managing the regional global
asset management business and financial control for North Asia.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been a Chartered
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since September 1979, a Chartered Professional Accountant of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants since November 2012 and
currently also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director
of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.

Mr. ZHU Lijun, (5R3E), aged 60, is an independent non-executive
Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. ZHU has been the vice president of China United Network
Communications Co., Ltd ({ Bl & 4848@E BR A A)) (formerly known
as China Netcom (Group) Corporation Limited (47 1493 (52 E) AR A 7))
since 2006. He was also a representative of the 10th National People’s
Congress held in 2003.

Mr. ZHU received a Bachelor of Economics degree from the Jilin
University (F#AE2) in July 1997, a Master of International Management
degree from the Australian National University in July 2004 and a Doctor
of Management degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in October 2008. Mr. ZHU had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Z|2%), aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. LIU has been a visiting professor at the department of management
science and director of the center for transport, trade and financial
studies of the City University of Hong Kong since 2011.

Mr. LIU received a Master in Engineering degree in March 1982 from
Huazhong Engineering University (£ T 225z ) (now known as Huazhong
University of Science & Technology (EEFRHTAEZ)). He received a
Master of Science degree major in Engineering-Economic Systems from
Stanford University in the United States in June 1983 and a Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Industrial Engineering from Pennsylvania State
University in August 1986 in the United States. Mr. LIU had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the
past three years.

Senior Management
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Name Gender Age Group Position
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WU Si Qiang Male 41 Chief operating officer

R B 5 BEEEE

LI Yijin Female 43 Chief financial officer & Company Secretary
> 5 Z BREUBERETEME

LI Jun Male 52 Chief technology officer
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Mr. WU Si Qiang (2 £38), aged 41, is the chief operating officer of the
Group, and joined the Group in 2001. He is primarily responsible for the
overall operation of the Group. Mr. WU has approximately 12 years of
experience in the card industry. He has been the chief operating officer of
the Group since 2011. He was a manager of the production division, vice
general manager of the operation division, general manger of the
production management division of Goldpac Secur-Card from 2001 to
2004, 2004 to 2006 and 2009 to 2011 respectively and has been the
chief operating officer of Goldpac Secur-Card since 2011. He also served
as a manager of the procurement division of Goldpac Secur-Card since
2004. Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University* (&
WM ERT ) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology (B3 T
2 KE ) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July 1993. Mr. WU
had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

SENSHRERE @

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53f), aged 43, is the chief financial officer of the Group,
and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily responsible for the
management of the accounting and finance department of the Group.
Ms. LI has approximately 22 years of experience in the accounting and
financial reporting matters. She was the financial controller of the Group
from 2004 to 2012 and has been the chief financial officer of the Group
since 2012. She has also been the chief financial officer and financial
controller of both Goldpac Datacard and Goldpac Secur-Card since
2001.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. LI worked in Zhuhai S.E.Z. Willert
Electronics Ltd.* (% /8 FIE T AR AF]), and has worked as a financial
controller and assistant to marketing manager of Zhuhai International
Circuit Limited* (2k/8 BIFR BEIZE /2 7 ) and has involved in economic
affairs of Zhuhai Jinhong Electricals Co., Ltd.* (584 B R RH BRA 7))
from 1996 to 2000, 1994 to 1996 and 1991 to 1993, respectively. Ms. LI
received an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the
Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in November 2012. Ms.
LI has been a member of CPA Australia since October 2004 and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms.
LI had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years

Mr. LI Jun (£ E), aged 52, is the chief technology officer of the Group,
and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the technical solutions department and R&D department
of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 15 years of experience in the
technology related industry. He has been the chief technology officer of
the Group since January 2013. He has also been the chief technology
officer of both Goldpac Secur-Card and Goldpac Datacard since January
2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient GmbH as
engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 was a director for security
equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China) Information Technology Co.,
Ltd.. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications (It REEFEEFT) with a degree in radio
communication and received a master degree in engineering from
Universitat-Gesamthochschule Paderborn in Germany and a master
certificate in project management from the George Washington University
through its program in Beijing in July 1983, June 1997 and May 2005
respectively. Mr. LI had not been a director of any other listed companies
in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Company Secretary

Ms. LI Yijin (Z5#), aged 43, is the company secretary of the Group,
and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily responsible for the Group
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior Management
— Senior Management” above for the biography of Ms. LI.

Change in Information of Director

Pursuant to 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the change in information of
Director subsequent to the Listing Date is set out below:

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY ceased to be an executive vice
president of Gemalto, a substantial shareholder of the Company, on 6
January 2014. However, Mr. PAGEZY remains the board representative
nominated by Gemalto to the Board and will retire from the Board by
rotation, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
SEEHS

The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year 2013

Principal Activities

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004 as a
limited liability company. The Group’s operations are substantially
conducted through its subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group is principally
engaged in providing total secured solutions and services for financial
institutions, government agencies and other organizations that issue
financial cards. At the same time, to further leverage the Group’s existing
advantage in the industry, the Group keep enhancing its research and
development capabilities to develop application solutions to meet the
changing needs of financial institutions, government departments or
agencies and business enterprises, and to upgrade its existing application
solutions in response to the changes in the technological developments.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year 2013 is set
out in Note 7 to the Consolidated Statement on pages 102 to 104 of this
Annual Report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year 2013 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income of page 63
of this Annual Report.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK4.8 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB3.8 cents) per ordinary Shares, representing an
aggregate of HK$39,840 thousand (equivalent to approximately
RMB31,540 thousand) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Performance

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and details
of the Group’s principal activities are provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 16 to page 25 of this
Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 28 May
2014, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
23 May 2014. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 26 May 2014 to Wednesday, 28 May 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at the above address for registration by 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 4 June 2014. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 5 June 2014 to Monday, 9 June 2014,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. Subject to shareholder’s approval of the proposed final
dividend at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 28 May 2014, the final dividend will be paid to shareholders
on Monday, 23 June 2014 whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Monday, 9 June
2014.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year 2013 are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 139 of this Annual Report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year 2013 are set out in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statement on page 115 of this Annual Report.

Bank Loans

Details of bank loans are set out in Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statement on pages 129 to 130 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)
EFE2HRSE@

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
2013 are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statement on
pages 132 to 134 of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the relevant rules of Hong Kong and PRC, the Company’s
reserves available for the distribution to the shareholders as at 31
December 2013 amounted to O (31 December 2012: RMB4,209
thousand).

The turnover, assets and liabilities of the past 4 years of the Group are
set out in the Financial Summary on page 5 of this Annual Report.

The details of the share option schemes adopted by the Company on 15
November 2013 are set out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statement on pages 135 to 138 of this Annual Report. Further details are
disclosed in the section headed “Other information — 15. Share Option
Schemes” in Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information of the
Prospectus.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year 2013 and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
Mr. TING Tao |

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. ZHU Lijun
Mr. LIU John Jianhua
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Profiles

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 26 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, which shall be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the executive
Director or the Company. Each of non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years. Each of
independent non-executive directors has signed an appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years. The appointments of each
Director are subject to appointment and retirement of directors under the
article of association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. LU Run
Ting, Mr. LU Runyi and Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY wiill retire from
the Board and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment compensation, other than statutory compensation

Confirmation of Independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU
John Jianhua, the confirmation of their respective independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has duly reviewed the
confirmation of independence of each of these Directors. The Company
considers that the independent non-executive Directors had been
independent from the date of their appointment to 31 December 2013
and remain independent as at the date of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)
EFE2HRSE@

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors and Chief
Executive in the shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (all within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules were detailed below:

ESTEREHTENESR

HE2013F12A3IH EEMEFEHRITE
EAARERERBIE(TEAESRBE
WEBIEXVER) 2 E M & - BEER D RES
ZHESRE EWARBEEOT

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held® Company (%)
Frik & A B &
EELE i 5 58 % B B B E D L (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation 356,839,422 Shares (L) 42.99%
ERELE(EE) REGEE R 356,839,422 % (L)
Beneficial owner 3,700,000 0.45%
Zm Al 3,700,000
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.18%
& ZEEAW 1,500,000
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.24%
EHEe ZEEAW 2,000,000
Mr. LU Xiaozhong Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.12%
E/N R Zm A 1,000,000

" Shares which are subject to options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

@ The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or
the relevant associated corporation.

O BRREEEREREETABREY R
B e

[L] K 2 F R AL A2 AF B A6 B % B R (7
P HBIIFR ©



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Contracts with Controlling Shareholders

No contract of significance had been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2013 the
following Director had declared interests in the following entity which
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company.

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY was an executive vice-president of
Gemalto until 6 January 2014.

Further details are disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders — Independence from Controlling Shareholders
— Delineation of Business and Non-Competition” in the Prospectus.

Management Contracts

No contacts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)
EFE2HRSE@

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments of the Directors are set out in Note 11 to the
Consolidated Statements on pages 107 to 110 of this Annual Report.

Non-Compete Undertakings

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company of
his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the
Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the
Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the controlling
shareholders.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications
and competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes are
set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” above and
Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the section
headed “Other information — 15. Share Option Schemes” in Appendix IV
— Statutory and General Information of the Prospectus.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year.

EEHM

HE2013F12A831H It AARIEF 2%
BAEZ S AFIRAFRP FI07EBE
HOBELZRA MR ERM LN -

TR A

EERBEREMARAER ECETR
BETIHFRB(EZRARER)AARQF
RUENIBFAZ - BUFRATEZTCE
BEEBR YHIAZBKRREBTR
EABFRIBEPTA A -

¥ B R

AEBENFHBRRDERENRENE
B-EEREN YEHHTHEZESSE
Fﬁjo

EENFMOATHEEG2EAKEN
REXBE BAARBARATELBENTISHR
AEEMEEE YHEESRTE -

ARAE AW IERER S - AR R
BEEFERAERER -AHZXEEN
AEER EXERERSE ] —BRMBE
B RE 32 LA Ko R B 3 B & P 8% P AR DA FE Je —
REB—HMER 15 BARE S o

REERN BEEZIRELCAME -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Share
Capital

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO recorded
that, as at 31 December 2013, the following persons and corporations
had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the Company:
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Approximate
shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™ percentage
A EEME FrEEsEga" BABRES
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled corporation®® 356,839,422 Shares (L) 42.99%
EEEXE ZEEEEERS 356,839,422 % (L)
Beneficial owner®” 3,700,000 0.45%
AP0 3,700,000
Ms. ZHANG Jian® Family 360,539,422 Shares (L) 43.44%
SR+ ENIS 360,539,422 % (L)
Gemalto® Interest of Controlled corporation 152,931,181 Shares (L) 18.42%
REHEEER 152,931,181 % (L)
BOC® Interest of Controlled corporation 90,229,397 Shares (L) 10.87%
REHEEER 90,229,397 & (L)
Notes: B & -
(1) The letter “ L” denotes a person’s long position in our Shares or shares of the (1) [LIXKXBAA LT RR G X ANEEIFBHKE R
relevant Group member. AR 17 T 5 B 4F B o
(2) The disclosed interest represents (i) the interest in our Company held by GIHL, — (2) FT# B # w 73 ()& HZE BB AT 5 K 22 &) ##E
which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed to o M HEEFHEFEEEHSE Bt
be interested in GIHL’s interest in our Company by virtue of the SFO; and (i) REBEFZRBERY  EEREHEERD BE
shares which are subject to options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. BEfFEZANG PR #Em  RiBE X
NEBEFBREET 28 T 6 55 IR #E 4 K £ iR
% o
(3 Ms. Zhang Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in  (3) KEXR+RBEFEMIME  RIEZEHRPEF
Chairman LU’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO. vl R IEREF RO AL AR A
Bas e
(4)  The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by GISA, which ~ (4) BT # 58 # z5 B GISAFT 5 KX 2 6] # 7 + if1 GISA
is wholly-owned by Gemalto, whose shares are listed and traded on the NYSE 1 Gemalto = & # & + Gemalto &9 % 17 Rl IR A4 49
Euronext Amsterdam and NYSE Euronext Paris. Therefore, Gemalto is deemed to CEEBS ARSI RABYZEERL S
be interested in GISA’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO. LT REE -FUt REEZEFREBEKD -
Gemalto 1 1% tE R GISAFT #5 .2 K 1 Al o H #
BEa o
(5) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by BOCI — (5) Fi##F#m AP RERKENMIFA LAl #Ewm

Investment, which is wholly-owned by BOCI International Holdings Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Bank of China Limited (“BOC”). Therefore, BOC is
deemed to be interested in BOCI Investment’s interest in the Company by virtue of
the SFO.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities throughout the period
commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 35.00% (2012: 20.70%) and 60.35% (2012: 46.57%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for 51.34% (2012: 26.93%) and 79.50% (2012: 73.48%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

Mr. Christophe PAGEZY is a non-executive Director and was the
executive vice-president of Gemalto until 6 January 2014, which is a
major supplier and a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
PAGEZY is a board representative nominated by Gemalto onto the
Board.

Certain Bank of China entities in the PRC are major customers of the
Company, whose ultimate holding company is Bank of China Limited,
which is also the ultimate holding company of BOCI Investment, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Ting Tao |, one of the non-
executive Director is a board representative nominated by BOCI
Investment onto the Board.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s shares in issue) had interests in the
above suppliers or customers.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following related party transactions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2013 constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Group under the Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in
this Annual Report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Gemalto

Gemalto is a substantial shareholder of the Company holding
approximately 18.43% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this Annual
Report, and thus a connected person of the Company. Each of Gemalto
Taiwan Co., Ltd., Gemalto Pte. Ltd., Shanghai Axalto IC Card
Technologies Co., Ltd. and Gemalto (Shanghai) (the “Gemalto Entities”)
is a subsidiary of Gemalto, and thus a connected person of the
Company.

During the three years ended 31 December 2012 and the six months
ended 30 June 2013, the Group purchased certain microprocessor
composed of an electronic component embedding a card operating
system, also known as smart card chips, from certain Gemalto Entities.
On 15 November 2013, a module supply agreement was entered into
between Gemalto and the Company Goldpac Secur-Card and Goldpac
Datacard (the “Module Supply Agreement’), pursuant to which
Gemalto agreed to supply and the Group agreed to purchase from
Gemalto or its affiliates each year not less than 75% of the smart card
chips required by the Group to the extent the smart card chips are
available from the product list of Gemalto, for a term commencing from
the date of listing of the Company and ending on 31 December 2015. If
the smart card chips on the product list of Gemalto does not contain the
smart card chips that the Group requires, or the Group does not require
any smart card chip at all, there is no requirement to purchase from
Gemalto or its affiliates. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined under Rule 14A.10 of the Listing Rules) in respect of
the proposed annual caps for the module supply under the Module
Supply Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015, respectively, exceed 5% and more than HK$10,000 thousand,
the transactions under the Module Supply Agreement constitute non-
exempt continuing connected transactions and will be subject to the
reporting, announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rules 14A.45 to 14A.48 of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group purchased smart card
chips from Gemalto and its affiliates in the amount of RMB491,848
thousand, which was within the annual cap of RMB500,000 thousand
approved by the Stock Exchange for the waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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BOCI Investment

BOCI Investment is a substantial shareholder of the Company holding
approximately 10.87% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report, and thus a connected person of the Company. BOC is the
ultimate holding company of BOCI Investment. To the best of the
knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, BOC is the ultimate
holding company of certain Bank of China entities (including BOC Credit
Card (International) Limited and BOC Services Co. Ltd.), which the Group
supplies cards and solutions (the “BOC Entities”). The Directors
consider it is appropriate to regard each of the BOC Entities as a
connected person of the Company.

During the three years ended 31 December 2012 and the six months
ended 30 June 2013, the Group, following a tender and bidding process,
provided card personalisation services, including card embossing,
personalisation and delivery services (the “Services”) to certain BOC
Entities. Following a successful tender and bidding process, a service
agreement will be entered into between the Group and the relevant BOC
Entities, which sets out the terms and conditions for the provision of the
Services. The volume of the provision of the Services is then set out in
the individual purchase orders.

On 7 March 2011, a service agreement was entered into between
Goldpac Datacard as the service provider and BOC Credit Card
(International) Limited as the customer (the “BOC International Service
Agreement”) in respect of the card services of Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited outside China, pursuant to which Goldpac Datacard
agreed to provide the Services to BOC Credit Card (International) Limited,
on prevailing market terms and conditions, in accordance with the
specification, fees and procedures set out therein, for an initial period of
three years, ending on 8 March 2014, which will automatically be
renewed for a further period of three years unless terminated by either
party in accordance with the terms therein.

Various service agreements were entered into and will be entered into,
from time to time and as necessary, between Goldpac Secur-Card as the
service provider and certain individual BOC Entities (being different
branches or service entities under Bank of China Limited in the PRC) as
the customer (the “BOC China Service Agreements”) in respect of the
card services of BOC in China, pursuant to which Goldpac Secur-Card
agreed and will agree to provide the Services to such BOC Entities, on
prevailing market terms and conditions, in accordance with the
specification, fees and procedures set out therein. As the BOC China
Service Agreements were entered into and will be entered into separately
with each of such BOC Entities, the validity period of the contracts varies,
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generally ranging from one year to two years. The commencement dates
and expiry dates of the BOC China Services Agreements still in force
generally fell into 2011 to 2013 and 2013 and 2015, respectively.
According to our previous course of dealings, it is an internal policy of
such BOC Entities that the terms for agreements similar to the BOC
China Service Agreements will be generally between one year to two
years.

On 5 November 2013, a framework agreement was entered into between
Goldpac Secur-Card and BOC to govern the BOC China Service
Agreements to be entered into between such subsidiary in the Group and
the relevant BOC Entities (the “BOC China Framework Agreement”,
together with the “BOC International Service Agreement” and the “BOC
China Service Agreements”, the “BOC Service Agreements”) for a
term commencing from the date of signing and ending on 31 December
2015. The BOC China Service Agreements will be entered into between
Goldpac Secur-Card and the relevant BOC Entities and will be within the
ambit of and governed by the BOC China Framework Agreement.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14A.10 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the proposed annual caps
for the provision of services under the BOC Service Agreements for the
three year ending 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively,
exceeds 5% and more than HK$10,000 thousand, the transactions
under the BOC Service Agreements constitute non-exempt continuing
connected transactions and will be subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.45 to 14A.48 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fee for the services provided
by the Group to BOCI Investment and its affiliates was in the amount of
RMB185,089 thousand, which was within the annual cap of RMB186,840
thousand approved by the Stock Exchange for the waiver from strict
compliance with the announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Auditor”), the auditor of the Company, to
review the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Practice note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Auditor has issued a review report to the board and confirmed that
for the year 2013:

(1)

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value disclosed in the prospectus of the Company in respect
of each of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

Sufficiency of the Public Float

Based on information that has publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float permitted under the
Listing Rules since the Listing until the date of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Charitable Donations

During the Year 2013, the Group made charitable donations in the
approximate amount of RMB800 thousands.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FPFxEIBHS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the
Code Provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions of the Directors.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent as the
Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions of employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Below is the list of Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (Senior Vice President)

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
(Member of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. TING Tao | (Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Members of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. ZHU Lijun (Members of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 35 of this
Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed under
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 35 of this Annual
Report.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. LU
Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s
business development and daily management and operations generally.

TEXEBIOHMS @

EEg

EEgRdmAKEAK EPEEHIT
B MBEFATESFLR=RBULIFHT
EE-LATREEAKEIIK:

EBRE(FEFEELEZESER)

BEVX(5EHTE)

m/F'ﬂA(mﬁ&Er// BE)
NR(EREER)

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
(tEEZE2HKE)
TE—(FHEEEKE)

BAR(FECLZEETERIEELZ R EH
HHNZEEKR)

RIB(FEZEEHREZREMKE)
HEE (FWZEELTERELLZEEH

REZREEMKA)

EFEAGEZHN2013FFHRANFE26H
E3E EBERAIEEREAEEENA] -

EEeRBZ2ENBARELERAFRDFH26
HEFBAIEZENARAEEEIHE -

TEMEFEATEDHEBELRENE
FPRERT TFREZALIHEREFTENSE
MEELEREF-BERATEREEER
AINEBERMEBEREE-

snsrzs |G W

=R

3=

Ehd




£10g Wodey [enuuy  pspwr] dnosp oedpion 7 G J

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013, the Board
at all times had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a term of 3 years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board takes decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly-appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on his first appointment to the Board to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company organized two
training sessions conducted by the qualified professionals for all Directors
on directors’ duties and responsibilities, compliance related matters and
corporate governance.

In addition, relevant reading materials including Directors’” manual/legal
and regulatory update/seminar handouts have been provided to the
Directors for their reference and studying.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the Company
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and
members of each board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
THEBHE @

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, audit plan and relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to the
Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results and
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

As the Company was only listed on 4 December 2013, no meeting was
convened by the Audit Committee for the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2013. From 2014 onward, the Audit Committee will
conduct meeting at least twice a year to review interim and annual
financial results and reports and significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, scope of work and appointment of external
auditors, connected transactions, arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman
of Audit Committee), Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua.

The Audit Committee will also meet the external auditors at least twice a
year without the presence of the executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration of the senior
management is listed as below by band:

AR (&)

Band of remuneration (HKD)

TEXEBIOHMS @

B £20183F12A31B IEF E -
BB A RIZIR T

SREERE

No. of person

AB

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 % 7T, % 1,500,000 % 7T 3

Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive and
Employees are set out in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013, no
meeting was convened by the Remuneration Committee because the
Company was only listed on 4 December 2013. From 2014 onwards, the
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to review and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management and other related matters.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
LIU John Jianhua (Chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr. TING Tao
['and Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for
the nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of Directors,
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

As the Company was only listed on 4 December 2013, no meeting was
convened by the Nomination Committee during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2013. From 2014 onwards, the Nomination
Committee will meet at least once a year to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely, Mr. LU Run
Ting (Chairman of Nomination Committee), Mr. Christophe Jacques
PAGEZY, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun and LIU John Jianhua.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of the
biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report. Ms. Li confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the year ended 31 December 2013 as required by
the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members

Since the Company was only listed on 4 December 2013, no meeting
was held by the Board or any of the board committees between the
Listing Date and 31 December 2013.

Three Board meetings were convened for the period from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013. Attendance of individual Directors at the
Board meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

BEEfR

TEXEBIOHMS @

EERZEEHENHERTE

EARNDNFN2013F12 848 £/ BAR
Al FWHEHEZ2013F12A31H 1E AR
ANABHAIMNEESKZETSH -

M2013F1 A1 H E2013F12 A31 B #fE -
—HBRTINESTEER LEEEeE
BRNEEREBEWOTN

Attendance/Number of Board meetings held

HERE ERRE

Executive Directors:
HITES:

Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping
B&¥RE

Mr. LU Runyi

BB E A

Mr. LU Xiaozhong”
E/NBEE”

Non-executive Directors:
FHITES

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
Christophe Jacques PAGEZY %t &
Mr. TING Tao I

TE—EE"

Independent non-executive Directors:
BYFHITES

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin*

Mr. ZHU Lijun*

RIZE LA

Mr. LIU John Jianhua*

Bl A

* Mr. LU Xiaozhong was appointed as Director on 21 May 2013.
" Mr. TING Tao | was appointed as Director on 4 July 2013.

* Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua were appointed

as Directors on 15 November 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 61 to 62 of this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2013 amounted to HK$1,680 thousand and HK$3,080 thousand
respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2013 is
set out below:

EERVBERRIBE

EERREMNBHEELARAEHE2013F12
AS1BLEEYHEREANEL -

EEXTANBEMBEEAELESSEARAFR
BRERNZINERERNEBHRIERN
ERTHERE-

R ARBIZBEMBE N ERREBRBE
B BR S 70 AN 5F 3R 2 98 7 A% BRD R & 61
BHE62H °

¥ 28 B 5 BN

AARTFIHEZEMABREZE L
2013F 12 A31 B M AR 7% M IE X SR 7%
Z B4 2Rl AEB 1,680 T 7L M3,080 T 7T °

HE2013F12A3MBEFE SN FAL
RIANEZ MM ES - B =R 5 g5 F 5
FTot X 8RS R IE BRI 2B & 2T
R

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category REER i<
HKS
BT
Audit Services % B R 7 1,680,000
Non-audit Services HEZE R
— Services provided in connection with — AR HRAARERHERE
initial public offering of the Company 3,080,000

4,760,000




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Internal Controls

Before the Listing, the Company engaged an external professional party
to review its internal control policies. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, also conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as the
case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”). The general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting must be stated in the request. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies
Ordinance for convening a general meeting.

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders; or
at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be) who have a right to vote at
the relevant annual general meeting, may request to circulate a resolution
to be moved at an annual general meeting. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance
for circulating a resolution for annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Room 1205-086, 12th Floor, Cigna Tower, 482 Jaffe Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 28346759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on 15
November 2013, the amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company were adopted with effect from the Listing
Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2013, there was no significant change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDPAC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldpac Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 144, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ﬁ‘
— _ / A
BFENEMERWNARR
For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H
2013 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
K &t AR® TR ARET T
Turnover B 7 1,112,260 676,609
Cost of sales EEEKA (788,466) (473,221)
Gross profit EF 323,794 203,388
Other income, expenses, gains or losses  H AU A ~ FAX ~ WSk
B8 8 25,100 12,192
Gain on fair value changes of MESBRITANQTE
derivative financial instruments gl = - 13,058
Research and development costs fiff 2% 5 A (46,754) (28,548)
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SR AR (75,127) (41,540)
Administrative expenses THAX (14,275) (13,783)
Profit before listing expenses and B ETH R S R B ASRR A
finance costs B A 212,738 144,767
Listing expenses EWRX (15,837) =
Non-cash finance charge on BHEBEEENIERS
share repurchase obligations % &R 9 (11,513) =
Other finance costs H b B 7S AR 9 (2,058) (6,819)
Profit before taxation o %54 AT Il B 10 183,330 137,948
Taxation 7518 12 (42,505) (22,835)
Profit for the year F & A 140,825 115,113
Other comprehensive income (expense) 4 € H th 2 E I A
for the year (Ax)
— exchange differences arising on —MEGINEBEET
translation of foreign operations HiEaEsmsEE
which may be reclassified BmrE N =5
subsequently to profit or loss (13)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 45 & 2 W A 140,826 115,100
Earnings per share TR E A 14
— Basic — ®EK 22.6 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

im0 B SRR R

At 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31H

2013
Notes RMB’000
B ot ARET T
Non-current assets EmEEE

Property, plant and equipment MW E K& EE 15 124,806
Land use rights + i {3 AR A 16 1,025
Intangible assets mAE 17 18,125

Current assets MENE E
Inventories TE 19 271,862
Trade receivables B 5 EIR R 20 194,075
Other receivables and prepayments Hib gl mE LB | 21 11,697
Other financial assets EmemEE 23 =
Pledged bank deposits BB IRITER 24 27,894
Fixed bank deposits EHERITIE R 24 902,567
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIRS 24 393,824
1,801,919

Current liabilities mE A&
Trade and bills payables B RENRERENEE 25 428,978
Other payables H th JE S RIB 26 69,294
Government grants IR T 4@ B 27 3,100
Amounts due to related companies EREE NI E 28 =
Taxation I8 24,497
Bank loans RITER 29 15,316
541,185
Net current assets mENVEEFE 1,260,734
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 1,404,690

2012
RMB’000
AR®TT

93,313
1,251

94,564

145,554
183,311
5,959
201,801
34,496

42,223

613,344

338,132
82,450
3,000
11,249
16,514
37,093

488,438

124,906

219,470

F




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
%r 6 B B AR R & (@)

At 31 December 2013
B ZE=2013F12H31H

2013 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR® TR ARET T
Non-current liabilities EREAarE
Government grants XA 48 b 27 2,300
Deferred taxation EET IR 30 3,703
7,578 6,003 (
(08
Net assets BEEFE 213,467 O
.
Capital and reserves BARN R Tl
Share capital B A 31 653 1 ~
Reserves w1 1,396,459 213,466 g
B
Total equity 7 a HAFE 1,397,112 213,467 S
|

& -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 144 were approved & = & R2014F3 821 B EZ T BB F
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014 63B E F144 B A MEHKR N EM » b H

and are signed on its behalf by: NTEEEREREE: -FH
.FH
#
LU Run Ting HOU Ping
EERE B
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

EFRTERNITEF HITEFREEHNTTE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 55 1A 0 #R &

At 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31H

2013
Notes RMB’000
B ot ARET T
Non-current assets EmEEE
Intangible assets mAE 17 18,125
Investments in subsidiaries RFRARMEE 18 107,598
125,723
Current assets MENE E
Amounts due from subsidiaries i3 G R/NEIE S 22 121,341
Fixed bank deposits R1TE E 7R 24 902,567
Bank balances SRITH & 24 4,643
1,028,551
Current liabilities BB E
Other payables H b FE S FRIE 26
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfFF R RIZRIA 28
Amount due to a related company FEAS — R BB A R RUE 28
Net current assets mEEEFE
Net assets BEEFE 1,145,426
Capital and reserves RN
Share capital A% 7 31 653
Reserves ek 33 1,144,773
Total equity B 1,145,426

LU Run Ting

EEE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFOTERVITEF

HOU Ping
&7

1,019,703

2012
RMB’000
AR®TT

47,703

47,703

9,750

302

10,052

26
146
9,750

9,922

130

47,833

47,832

47,833

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEFREENTTE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

™ /N s € 454 E}l
ROIEREER
For the year ended 31 December 2013

B E2013%F12A31H

Share
Share Share options Translation Other Statutory Retained
capital premium r;gservgg reserve reserves reserves profits Total
3
BA ROEE e ENRE HuRFRE ZERE REAND &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE AR AR ARE AR AR AR AR
T T T T T T T T
At 1 January 2011 RK2011F1 A1H 1 43,623 — 1,663 37,681 13,551 50,528 147,047
Profit for the year F 1Z A - — - - - — 115113 115113
Exchange differences arising 1 & /g ) % 7% 2= 4=
on translation of foreign mEZAIEH
operations which may be DEEBEEN
reclassified subsequently e X =5
to profit or loss = = = (13) = = = (13)
Total comprehensive income  4F & 2 & Y¢ A 42 %8
for the year — - — (13) - — 115,113 115,100
Transfers o — — — — — 5,527 (5,527) —
Dividends recognised as R AED KRS
distribution — — — - — - (48,680) (48,680)
= = = - - 5527  (54,207)  (48,680)
At 31 December 2012 MK20129F12A31H 1 43,623 — 1,650 37,681 19,078 111,434 213,467

Profit for the year EE ) E

Exchange differences arising #4239 % 74 2= 4
on translation of foreign mEBAIEH
operations which may be DEEEEN
reclassified subsequently to & i, Z= %8
profit or loss

Total comprehensive income  4F & % [ Ut A 42 58
for the year

Issue of shares HITRR D

Capitalisation issue BRI BT

Issue of Redemption Shares %77 i [g] % {5

~aa
Sl

(as defined in note 31(b))

Reclassification of Redemption & 8] i% 7 & 5 48
Shares (note 31(p)) (2 R M #E31(0)

Reclassification of share ROEEEFBENER
repurchase obligations (2 R K EE31(0)
(note 31(b))

Transaction cost attributable 55 74 %17 i& 15 &)
to issue of shares RH A

Recognition of equity-settled % 1 25 45 & LA B% (3
share-based payments XA HIE

Transfers HE

Contribution by a shareholder — & % & f 1 &
(note 28) (2R M3x28)

Dividends recognised as BREDKE RS
distribution

i
o
»
w

=
@
g

974,428
(471)

187,000
(187,000)

198,513
(43,909)

1,128,561

At 31 December 2013 R2013512 431 H

1,172,184

3,800

1,651

140,825 140,825

- 140,825 140,826

974,609

187,000
(187,000)

198,513
(43,909)

= 3,800
(8,418) =

8,418

1,499

(91,693)  (91,693)

8,418  (100,111) 1,042,819

39,180 27,496 152,148 1,397,112

ssxz /9 1

=R 2 E73

& -

Ehd
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

llT (] m& .Il:lI\l "?&“ E’] % (m,e‘)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory
reserves into capital of a subsidiary of the Company, Goldpac Secur-
Card Zhuhai Limited (“Goldpac Secur-Card”) in 2011 and contribution
from a shareholder as detailed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China (the “PRC”), Goldpac Secur-Card is
required to maintain two statutory reserves, being a statutory surplus
reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund which are non-
distributable, collectively referred to as PRC statutory reserves.
Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net profit after taxation
as reflected in the statutory financial statements of Goldpac Secur-Card
while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by its board of
directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise expansion fund
has been used for expanding the capital base of Goldpac Secur-Card by
means of capitalisation issue.

Hih EEERONFEERBERTEKR
BMERERERAR2A(EHERT
TDWEREME -—ZBRROEE #F5
BRA MM RERME28 -

REBH B A PRO)AMINE R E B ERIX
BEER eBEFRERAEFTMBETE
e BEERBRAEEREXERES
(BRAADKFER)  6FATEEEH
BoZRBEDREHEZRE AT M B R
RARBEOBRHRFNETRE HS8
EROBEELEBFRHEFTEET AT AR
AETAARBHEANEEER(INE)
RAIEBERNMEBETERABBAN  BEH
RESCCEBENCEITHRIFERS A E
RERE AR -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mOIREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREBETT

Operating activities KRB
Profit before taxation B B A1 A1 E 183,330 137,948
Adjustments for: RN ZIF R -
Investment income from other financial assets REHMESREEMNKRERA (6,263) (1,164)
Interest income B U A (3,122) (5,670)
Interest expenses MERXZ 2,058 6,819 —
Non-cash finance charge on share ROBEEEHAIER 2
repurchase obligations &M 11,513 — O
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMENMERETES 18,039 15,655 O
Amortisation of intangible assets M AEEN 193 = K
Operating lease rentals in respect T AESEEERS ﬁ
of land use rights 105 e
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE BE KK it
and equipment & 1B 734 g
Gain on fair value changes of TEeBTAEMNATFE at
derivative financial instruments B E) U 25 (13,058) E
Allowance for doubtful debts REREHE 668 al
Allowance for obsolete inventories REFEERB 1,093 I
Equity-settled share-based payments HEREE RN A )
% - 1
.FH
Operating cash flows before movements EIEA S BB RS E
in working capital Ren= 216,149 143,130
Increase in inventories & (129,711) (54,335)
Increase in trade receivables 2 2 e Ik 2R I8 10 (13,736) (99,451)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables H it fE U 3k I8 N T~ IE (3 hn)
and prepayments AR (5,738) 867
Increase in trade and bills payables B S FE FRIE N EAE 90,846 224,382
(Decrease) increase in other payables H o JE A I8 G4 ) 32 0 (20,683) 30,693
Decrease in government grants B &8 B e > (2,200) (200)
Cash from operations KESEEATE IR S 134,927 245,086
Taxation paid mENE A (30,647) (12,186)

Net cash from operating activities RESEH TSI £ 958 104,280 232,900
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GoBERSE (@

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

Investing activities REEY
Investment income received BREMSREERERA
from other financial assets
Interest received B W F B
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WENMKRE
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE
Purchase of other financial assets BEHEMEREE
Redemption of other financial assets BEHEM e EE
Placement of fixed bank deposits TR 1T E HifF 3%
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEHEERRITERX
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits R EBETER
Net cash used in investing activities HEETAR S FE
Financing activities A& R &)
Dividends paid BT E
Interest paid 21T F B

Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from share repurchase obligation
Transaction cost attributable to issue
of shares paid
Repayment to a related company
Bank loans raised
Repayment of bank loans

AT AD TS 3RIR
(el B2 B 12 PR 15 5RO
BRBETEROMN
RHMA

) — ] [68 Bt . B 5& 5K
EERRITER
BERITER

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

BEEDAEFA)RSFHE

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

RERBSEE YR INFER
1A1ARERRNEFEY
EREFHHTE

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

12A31BR e RIREEEY

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
Fixed bank deposits which matured
within three months

ReMRSFED
BT
RITESRRE S
31{E A M2 H & E H

RITFR

2013
RMB’000
ARBT R

6,263
3,122
(49,537)
(18,318)
(110,000)
311,801
(702,567)
(110,181)
116,783

(552,634)

(101,443)
(2,058)
974,609
187,000

(36,382)
57,147
(78,924)

999,949

551,595
42,223
6

593,824

393,824

200,000

593,824

2012
RMB’000
ARBETT

1,164
5,670
(30,321)

(473,801)
355,000

(33,083)
149,876

(26,000)
84,248
(199,986)

(187,487)

19,918
22,317
(12)

42,223

42,223

42,223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 4 December 20183.
Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 28 October 2013, the name of the Company was
changed from Gemplus Goldpac Group Limited to Goldpac Group
Limited. The Company acts as an investment holding company
while the Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales
of smart cards carrying personal identity and the provision of other
payment solution services. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are set out in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(‘RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

O B #5 ¥k < Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

—REH

iNNIE] P %E%}%?ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂifﬁﬁ
RARF HA EH2013F12A4
Eiﬁﬁxﬁﬂﬁéx%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ A (B
RH) ETWRS #KBR2013F 10 A28

NAIRERBEARE S AFAEEH
[ Gemplus Goldpac Group Limited | 2 4
[ Goldpac Group LimitedJ /NI
—XEREERERA EEEME
x%i‘%%%%%%@ﬂ}\ﬁuEﬁﬂzﬁlJ*”““
RTWAEERBEE  UARREHEEME A
AT ERYE . EBEAAEMBEEE
MEELEMB NI SH R FRD A
1!:! EED"

EHEAEMBHRERRAARE) 25
RAEAIMINEEE —H -

sepsrs |/ W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#x 6 B ¥ ¥ R Bft 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31H

Application of New and Revised International

Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSs”)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRS 9
IFRS 14
Amendments to IFRS 9

and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 32

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

IFRIC 21

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Mandatory Effective Date of
IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2074.

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined

when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised.

exceptions.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20176.

2.

P& A 3 5] & &2 AZ 3T /Y B BR Bt

7% & 2R

EEETEREFRMATIEBEMER

R E] RS ET RO B B B 75 R 5 %

Al

B BR B IS R 2010-2012 HA S

AR & 5] BIPR B IS R
7E BI /9 i

B BR B IS R 2011-2013 H3 R

AR & E] BIpR B IS R
7E BI| B i 2

B BR B IS R LRI AS

£ B B 955

B R B 7% 3 EEIRLERP®

AR 2B 14557

B BR B IS R BB IS s

AERIFE I & B 95 &Y

Bl PR B I R o8 il 4 3% B HB

ERIE 7R HEFT

FBE R ES

BRI FSmEER REERE

F105E - BF

B 755 3R 25 2E Bl

F125% R BB

SR F 275
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FA195RMIEET =R
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FEI2FEMIEET HemaE
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B PR & & 22 A PTETENHHE
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BB ERERE KB
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2 201447 F1H 2 1 FI 5 6 F JE R
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KRBT AR LBy - AR HE IR BEALRH o

4 H2014%F7 F1H 8 2 1% B 15 69 F Z A
£ EREEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the above new and revised IFRSs will have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the following accounting policies which conform
with IFRSs. IFRSs were also fully converged by Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

2.

fm © B 15 R 2% B 5F ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

FE P 37 5] I %48 5T /Y B BR B
W& 2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

FESFTBE @)

o B BHREZB N AFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when there has been
a transfer of risks and rewards to the customer, no further work or
processing is required by the Group, the quantity and quality of the
goods has been determined with reasonable accuracy and
standard, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is
reasonable assured. This is generally when title passes and the
goods have been delivered to the designated locations for the sales
of magnetic strip cards, smart cards and the related personalisation
services. Revenue from the sales of on-site card issuance
equipment and the related revenue from the provision of on-site
card issuance system solutions are recognised when the equipment
are delivered and the services are provided at the designated
locations and after inspection of the equipment.

fm © B 15 R 2% B 5F ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fm © B 5 ¥R 2 B 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries is recognised
when the owners’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Such construction in progress are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property, plant and equipment commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33"/:%
Motor vehicles 10%-20%
Plant and machinery 10%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land Use Rights

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases.

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interests in land are
accounted for as operating leases and are stated at cost and
released over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised fif,
and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible Assets Acquired Separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Impairment Losses on Tangible and Intangible
Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment Losses on Tangible and Intangible
Assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grant will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
depreciable assets are presented as deferred income and are
released to profit or loss over the useful life of the assets. Grants
related to expense items are recognised at the same period as
those expenses are charged in the profit or loss and are reported
separately as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) or loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in other income, expenses,
gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent those designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included in other income, expenses,
gains or losses line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loan and receivable is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment of Loans and Receivables (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables, amounts
due to related companies, amounts due to subsidiaries and bank
loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)

Share Repurchase Obligation

A contract that contains an obligation for the Group to repurchase
or redeem its own equity instruments for cash or another financial
asset upon the subscriber of the Redemption Shares (as defined in
note 31(b)) exercising a share redemption right is classified as a
financial liability. The Redemption Shares are initially measured at
fair value (after adjusting for initial direct cost) and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity Instrument
Equity instrument issued by the group entity are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items
that are not taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements of each group entity are prepared in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant leases. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

Retirement Benefits Costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based Payment Arrangements

Equity-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based Payment Arrangements (continued)

Equity-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
(continued)

Share Options Granted to Employees (continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Allowances for Inventories

The directors of the Company reviews the inventory aging analysis
at the end of the reporting period and identifies the slow-moving
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales.

The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and provides necessary
allowance if the net realisable value is estimated to be below the
carrying amount. The directors of the Company estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group normally
makes full provision for inventories held over one year as the net
realisable value of such inventories are considered to be minimal
and also make specific provision for slow-moving and obsolete
finished goods where appropriate. Allowances of approximately
RMB3,403,000 were made for obsolete inventories for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB1,093,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Estimated Impairment of Trade Receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was RMB194,075,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB5,519,000) (2012: carrying amount of
RMB183,311,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB2,553,000).

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents, bank loans and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raising of bank loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Financial Instruments

Categories of Financial Instruments
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EFMIA
SR TEREER
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRT ARETFT

THE GROUP -3
Financial assets SREE
Designated at FVTPL

BERBRIFEN AR

— structured deposits — BB ER 16,801
— funds —HE 185,000
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRERFZE(BERS
and cash equivalents) FIREEEW) 265,288
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost b N N 401,398
THE COMPANY EAT
Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRERFE(BERE
and cash equivalents) KBS EEY) 1,028,551 10,052
Financial liabilities cHEEE
Amortised cost B SH RN 8,848 9,922

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, other financials assets, pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade, bills and other
payables, amounts due to related companies and bank loans. The
Company’s major financial instruments include amounts due from
subsidiaries, fixed bank deposits, bank balances, other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries and amount due to a related company.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit Risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and
statement of financial position of the Company, respectively.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group continuously monitors the level of exposure to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 85.0% of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 80.3%) was due
from customers engaged in the banking industry.

The Group and the Company also have concentration of credit risk
on fixed bank deposits which are deposited with a bank with high
credit rating. Other than the above, the Group and the Company
do not have any other significant concentration of credit risk. The
credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is minimal
as such amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Market Risk

(i)

Currency Risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to risk of
United States dollar (“‘USD”). The percentage of the Group’s
sales and purchases that are denominated in USD, currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
companies are as follows:

HZE2013F12A31H
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(i)

2| B2

B m ke
BERRETFRABIINEEE
< BRFHBEETHER - &
SEUXT(BER BEfERQ
AL E R AN E ) FHEN
HEBERRBENBO LT

2013 2012

Sales SHE R
Purchases o k-]

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

NTRAEERARNRABEARSE
HRMIINEABHNEERER R
EAREE :

Assets
'E
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTIT

THE GROUP rxE
HKD BT 2
usD x5 4,965
RMB AR 659
Euros (“EUR”) BT 206
THE COMPANY KATF

HKD BT 9,750
UsD ETT 152
EUR BL T 150
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Market Risk (continued)
(i)  Currency Risk (continued)

£F T A m)

B EREE R REBE@®

™ 35 B B (48)
() E%mEpEE)

Liabilities
aE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T

THE GROUP A

HKD BT 12,665
UsD ETT 66,563
EUR BL T 678
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) BT =
THE COMPANY AN T

HKD BT 8,848 9,750
usD = - 146

In addition, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a
result of inter-group balances denominated in currencies
other than the respective functional currencies of the relevant
group companies, as follows:

o REBEREEANRE R EHRIL
FEBEAREBMINEE R M AT
EERER -2

Assets
BE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTIT

THE GROUP NE

Amounts due from (to) group companies: & U (F& () &£ F A 71 I8
HKD BT

HKD BT

UsbD ETT

UsbD ETT

RMB AR

37,933 9,750
(7,191) —
70,977 21,003
(70,977) (21,003)
(62,754) (17,280)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

(i)

Currency Risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below includes the Group’s and the
Company’s outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items as well as the Group’s intra-group
outstanding balances where the denomination of the
balances is in a currency other than the functional currency of
the respective group companies at the end of the reporting
period and has been determined based on the exposure to
exchange rates against the functional currency of relevant
group companies. For a 5% weakening of these currencies
against the functional currency of relevant group companies
and all other variables being held constant, the Group’s and
the Company’s profit for the year is as follows:
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2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
THE GROUP K&
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FEFEE CR)
— HKD — BT 146
— USD — X0 3,067
— RMB — AR 831
— EUR — BT 24
— JPY — B _
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
Decrease in profit for the year FEFEEE
— HKD — BT _
— USD — ¥ _
— EUR — BT )

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
for the year where the respective currencies strengthens
against the functional currency of relevant group companies
by 5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

(i)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits
(see note 24 for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets
and liabilities, mainly interest bearing bank deposits and
balances and bank loans at variable interest rates. The
Company has no significant interest rate risk exposure. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances and bank loans at variable rates at the end of the
reporting period and assumed that the amount of assets and
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points was used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
management does not anticipate a decrease in interest rate
in the next financial year having regard to the trends in market
interest rates and global economic environment. Accordingly,
sensitivity analysis on a decrease in interest rates is not
presented.

If interest rates on bank balances and bank loans had been
50 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on profit for the year is as
follows:

£F T A m)
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(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity Risk Management

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and
actual cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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6.

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity Risk Management (continued)

Weighted
average
Financial liabilities interest rate
ik
SHEE TR =
THE GROUP rEE
At 31 December 2013 201345128 31H
Non-derivative (TELHER
financial liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 5 & Z 1 f& 11 218
Other payables H i FE 5 5B
Bank loans RITER
— variable rate — ZE A x

At 31 December 2012

20125 12A31H

On
demand

FX
RMB'000
ARE
T

9,709

Less than
3 month

DR
318 A

RMB’000

ARE
T

312,143
5,294

15,343

332,780

SRIAm
B 7% BB B 22 B AR B BUR (@)
mENE € R EIE (E)
Over Over
3 months 6 months
but not but not Total
more than more than undiscounted Carrying
6 months 1 year cash flows amount
6AMUT —FUT KRR
3EANE 6EANLE HERLEE REE
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR AR®E  AR%
T T T T

110,986

110,986

3,667

3,667

428,978
12,821

15,343

457,142

428,978
12,821

15,316

457,115

Non-derivative FTESHEE

financial liabilities
Trade and bills payables & 5 & Z i & 1+ 308 = — 170,806 167,326 = 338,132 338,132
Other payables H A FE {5 508 - - 4,850 5,302 4,772 14924 14,924
Amounts due to JE 1 B B 8 B 3UE

related companies — 1,499 — 9,750 — 11,249 11,249
Bank loans BITER

— variable rate S 2.40% 7,682 21,949 7,676 — 37,307 37,093

9,181 197,605 190,054 4,772 401,612 401,398




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 87 %5 ¥ TR B 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity Risk Management (continued)

6. €I A

=
&n

BEEREEBZEEBE@®

REBEZEREE @)

g%z 66 1

[\ 6 & 3

= _&—

EHH=

Over Over
3 months 6 months
Weighted but not but not Total
average On Lessthan morethan more than undiscounted Carrying
Financial liabilities interestrate demand 3 month 6 months 1 year cash flows amount
ik LH3E 6EAMUT 1ELT KRR
cRBeE FiGF = EXR A SEAMUL eEAMULE HLKAE KHE
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR  AR% AR AR ARKE AR
T Fir T T T FiT
THE COMPANY b NN
At 31 December 2013 72013128318
Non-derivative FITESRER
financial liabilities
Other payables H At e FRIB
At 31 December 2012 420124128 31H
Non-derivative FITELHEAR
financial liabilities
Other payables HoAth & 1 FRIE - - 26 - = 26 26
Amount due to J& < A Bt A R ZIR
a related company — — — 9,750 — 9,750 9,750
Amounts due to P F 2B IR
subsidiaries — 146 — — — 146 146
146 26 9,750 - 9,922 9,922
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

fm © B 5 ¥R 2 B 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. R I HEu@m
Financial Risk Management Objectives and B E T IE R ZEBUR (#)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity Risk Management (continued) RBESERERE(E)
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the EIRERERKEEZHRITERTA L
“on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 MBI B ATHE RIS MEE - 20124
December 2012, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank 12A31H  WERTEREDASRE
loans amounted to RMB7,682,000, which were fully repaid A AR 7 682,000 0 151% & N20134F
subsequently during the year ended 31 December 2013. If such 12A31BRIZHEE FHHEERTE
bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled NEEBERNERZWZ 2B EERR
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, the aggregate HAE & 2 2 2013F 12831 H » &%
principal and interest cash outflows at 31 December 2012 will be BB RS A
as follows:
Over Over
1 year 2 years
Weighted but not but not Total
average Lessthan morethan more than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 3years 3years cash flows amount
piig: 4 26 LT 3FENT RER
TYPRE AFUT  1FRE 28N E 3FHULE HERLE KEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE ARE ARE AR ARE AR
Fr T T F T Fir
THE GROUP rE
At 31 December 2012 4201246 12A31H
Bank loans RITER
— variable rate —FEME 4.00% 2,325 2,243 2,162 1,567 8,297 7,682




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates as
input.

The fair value of structured deposits is determined with reference to
discounted cash flow model, which is based on the expected
return of the structured deposits. The fair value of unlisted funds is
determined based on the redemption value quoted by the relevant
investment trust, which is same as the nominal value of the funds.

The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair Value Measurements Recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period:

fm © B 15 R 2% B 5F ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

€@ T A w@m)

EMIAEQNAREE
cREEREBABENAABERR
ERNERIANXER/FTRRERER
AR EBEAMEE

BREBEGTRANAABERSERHAR
EREATENEBEFRNEHK
HEEMN -FLHEENAABER
RBEHEBOREF LI AR EER
ER G EREESHEE M-

H R 12 88 35 XN R0 8% B0 AR T (B 62 1 2
HENAAEBERS

48 OfF

BBERRBERPABATNDAREBE
HE
TRANARABRERMZARBE
EL R

At 31 December 2012
B E£20126F12A31H 1t

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-—BH SFZEBHK F=ZEBHK &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
THE GROUP REE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBETTAEBRN
ERMEE
Other financial assets EmemEE
— structured deposits — BB MEF = 16,801 = 16,801
— funds —5% 185,000 — = 185,000
185,000 16,801 — 201,801

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 throughout the
year.

RERFRBEFE  RBl— k&R =
Z B o

—

o

—
k>
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

rl1
|-H'

B i §5 ¥R % B 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

Turnover and Segment Information

Segment information has been identified on the basis of internal
management reports which are reviewed by the Chairman of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, in order to
allocate resources to the operating and reportable segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under IFRS 8 are
as follows:

Magnetic strip cards and — manufacture and sales of magnetic
smart cards strip cards and smart cards

Personalisation service — provision of personalisation
solutions services

On site card issuance — provision of on site card insurance
system solutions equipment and related
accessories and
solutions services

Each operating and reportable segment derives its turnover from
the sales of products or provision of services. They are managed
separately because each product requires different production and
marketing strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in arising at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables for goods sold or services rendered to outside
customers during the year.

Segments results represent the gross profit earned by each
segment.

EXBERIHBER

‘E‘Bﬁﬂ?ﬁf’ﬁﬁig%i}%%%m$

RAIETERAEEBERBAIRRD HBR
%16%?7“%%5%%%&?5’]?%‘5 EEE
HHEEZ R

RIFERM GRS ERESR AR E
RERATRBOEBMOT

MIEFERERT — HERMEE
s &
BHe R

& A1k BR 75 — REEAL
fRR T IR

BRRGFR  — REBRERE

GRS M ABRE R &

fRR T IR

ERERABERDBAHEEER LR
HERENESEEXE -SONEBE
B RARSEMBETRMNEER
&I R o

EEXBEFERIIBEFHES ML
REBRGHERKERRENQF
8-

2 EBSEAE AR K 0 #EERER MY AR R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Turnover and Segment Information (continued) 7.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segment:

fm © Wi 15 ¥R R Bt 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

EEBERDIBER @

AT RAEEIZA B R EE DK
AR B DT

Turnover Results
R ES
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR FTT AR®ETR ARETTT

FINERE P 2 E
—HIRRREER

Sales to external parties of
— magnetic strip cards and

smart cards 897,141

— personalisation service — {& At AR 75 114,657
— on site card issuance —BREH
system solutions BRI &R 100,462
1,112,260
Research and development fift 2 Bk X
costs
Other operating expenses HA
Other income, expenses, gains A b g A ~ Bk - 2k
or losses N EE
Gain on fair value changes of ~ #T44 & T B Q¥ (A
derivative financial instruments % & i 2%
Interest income A2 A
Listing expenses EFHAX
Non-cash finance charge on BHELETAIERE
share repurchase obligations B 75 & [
Other finance costs o 4th B 5 B AR
Profit before taxation B 75 B A1)

The Chairman of the Company makes decisions according to the
operating results of each segment. No information of segment
assets and liabilities is available for the assessment of performance
of different business activities. Therefore, no information about
segment assets and liabilities are presented.

499,227 225,314 125,986

81,859 53,888 42,722
95,523 44,592 34,680
676,609 323,794 203,388
(46,754) (28,548)

(89,402) (565,323

21,078 6,522

= 13,058

3,122 5,670

(15,837) —

(11,513) —

(2,058) (6,819)

137,948

ARBAEFRBEEDHBEEEEEH
RE-BEIDHBEEXRRBEHAR
A ARERKESDORE - Bk
VEEFDMEERBEEF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

fx B B ¥5 ¥R 2% Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

7. Turnover and Segment Information (continued) 7.

Other Information

Turnover from external customers attributed to the Group by
location of the customers is presented as follows:

EEBNDBEFR @

Hib & #

AEBFRGRAIIBEFLNEERR
EEME®RE D 25T

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT

Turnover -
— PRC —
— Hong Kong and Macau — B8 KR
— Philippines —JERE
— Mongolia —5&
— Other countries — HME =R

1,035,458 602,234
70,487 64,259
4,877 6,436
1,177 1,827

261 1,853

676,609

All the non-current assets of the Group are situated in the PRC
(including Hong Kong).

Information about Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were two customers
from the segments of magnetic strip cards and smart cards and
personalisation service with turnover of RMB389,245,000 and
RMB185,089,000 respectively (2012: RMB140,035,000 and
RMB72,849,000 respectively) which individually accounted for
more than 10% of the Group’s total turnover.

AEEFRBERRBDEEDURHH
(BREER) -

FHEETEEFMNESR

Bz —=F#+-_A=+—81t
FE - REKEFRERESERAREA
EtRBOFEMBELPHNEEED
Bl A& A R 389,245,000 A R ¥
185,089,000 —E ——EH Rl A AE
#140,085,000F1 A R #72,849,000) °
DREAEEREEEN10% N E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fm © Wi 15 ¥R R Bt 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

Other Income, Expenses, Gains or Losses 8. HMWA X - WIEK
BB
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTIT

Allowance for doubtful debts ROBR (B ) B0

— trade receivables — B B’ IE (2,972) (571)

— other receivables — H h pE IR 5k ©7)

Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE - WE & L E e 5

and equipment (734) (33
Government grants X AT 478 B 2,172 k>
Interest income FE WA 5,670 ﬁ
Investment income from HiemEENEEKRA gﬂﬁ

other financial assets 1,164 o
Net exchange gain fE 5 M 5% 8 2,432 §
Value-added tax refund EETR 914 =
Others H 1,242 3

[
it
.FH
.FH
Other Finance Costs/Non-Cash Finance 9. HMMBERANBMEES -
Charge on Share Repurchase Obligations R R B R A
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR T T
Interest on A& 2 F 8
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —BAREF Vq BHEEN
within five years RITEE (6,815)

— loan from a related company —RE—EBABEQAANER (4)

Non-cash Finance Charge on Share Repurchase BROBESENHEREH B
Obligations = 9i]
The non-cash finance charge in respect of the share repurchase #H 1F2013F 12 H48 AR aR&EB
obligations has been accounted for using the effective interest MR EmRERERKRIEZ2A K
method until 4 December 2013, the date when the Company’s MEBAEENFRESMBRZBIR
shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and the redemption RAEBRFEEANR-

obligation was terminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

10. Profit Before Taxation

10.

Bt A1 A

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETTT

Profit before taxation has been arrived at

after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 11)

Other staff costs

Other staff’s equity-settled
share-based payments

Other staff’s retirement benefits
scheme contributions

B 35 B A B 2 0 B% -

E=Me WiE11)

Hitg B # <

HitBERGEEEARND B
AR

H Al B R KAR A5t IR

Less: Staff costs included in research
and development costs

B BRI KA B A

Allowance for obsolete inventories
included in cost of sales
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
— land use rights
— office premises

FFABERANRETERE

A B
2R B 2
ME - BEMRRETE

KeHEHES
— L fE R

—BAE

8,549 7,242
110,092 81,636
2,922 =
2,879 1,603
124,442 90,481
(26,348) (18,146)
72,335

1,093

64

15,655

105

2,752

The cost of sales represented the cost of inventories recognised as

expenses during the year.

EEEmMRAEERFRERRAFAX
MEERA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fx B B 5 ¥R R Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

M. E5 BFRITEERES

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’

Emoluments B <
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARET T
Directors’ fees EFE -
Other emoluments to independent H FBUIFERATESHES
non-executive directors o
Other emoluments to HMFIERTEEHNHE 5
non-executive directors — N
Other emoluments to executive directors  E th FHITE S B & g
— basic salaries and allowances — HARF o =2 3,535 i
— bonus — D4 3,673 ~
— retirement benefits scheme — RIR@FIETEI 5K B
contributions 34 §
— equity-settled share-based payments  — #2548 E IR0 A E A X — ?
2l
7,242 [l
L]
|
The bonus of the directors was determined with reference to the £% ng
Group’s performance. g

Mr. HOU Ping is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed below include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

EFEEBRARAERFATE b
MMEETRPRE SFEBLAM
ERERATEREBHORE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

fr B Bt ¥5 ¥ 2K Bf 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

B Z=2013412A31H

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’

Emoluments (continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company are as follows:

1. EX EEITEHES
[0 kAT )

TERABSAEENTARAESTH
B <& BR 41 -

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETTT

Mr. LU Run Ting EEELE
— basic salaries and allowances — BEARE S ER 1,265
— bonus —DH 1,903
— retirement benefits scheme — RR@FIETEI 5K
contributions 12
— equity-settled share-based payments — — # 25 45 & LA BR 1) A E B 8 2 A =
3,180
Mr. LU Runyi E RS EA
— basic salaries and allowances — EARF & MER 231
— bonus — D4 109
— retirement benefits scheme — R IRAE A ET B R
contributions 10
— equity-settled share-based payments — — #E 25 45 & LA BE 10 A B 7 69 S 1+ —
350
Mr. HOU Ping EELEE
— basic salaries and allowances — HEAR S MEE, 1,479
— bonus — 54 1,652
— retirement benefits scheme — R RAE ) FT B4 3K
contributions 2

— equity-settled share-based payments ~ — HE 25 45 & LA JR 9 4 B 7 69 2 +F




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fx B B ¥5 3R R BT 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 11. E= - BEHTEHES
Emoluments (continued) M € (@)

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETT

Mr. LU Xiaozhong ENBEE
— basic salaries and allowances — BEAREH S A ER 560
— bonus — DA 109

— retirement benefits scheme — ROKAE A 5T 8 3¢

contributions 10
— equity-settled share-based payments — — #E 25 45 & LA IR 19 A& B 7 89 2 +F =
679

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin BORHREE
— directors’ fees —EEE i

Mr. ZHU Lijun RILBERAE
— directors’ fees —EEE -

Mr. LIU John Jianhua ZlEELE
— directors’ fees —EFE -
Total 48 78 7,242

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

11. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 11. %= - §EH{TEHES

Emoluments (continued) (L EAC D)
The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December PR2013F12A318  FE AN &S #
2018 included three (2012: three) directors of the Company, details ATBE=GMQ012F: =) EE -
of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the HMeFBERNER - NFERT —
remaining highest paid individuals during the year were as follows: NEERHFATHBMESOT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Employees ==
— basic salaries and allowances — AN S MER, 887
— bonus — D4 219
— retirement benefits scheme — RR@FIETEI 5K
contributions 20
— equity-settled share-based payments — — #2845 & AR (D A E i A X+ 213 —
1,126
The emoluments of the employees were within the following bands: EEMeE TREBEN
Number of employees
EEA™
2013 2012
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 T KA T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7t £ 1,500,000 7T =
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the REAFEFEAN AEERBERESS R
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and HHFNESAT(BEESERER)X
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or AR 2 E A %S| hn A sk in A ZR
as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors have SENEG - BEESNFARER

waived any emoluments during the year. A B & o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Taxation

#x 6 B 7% ¥ R Bt 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 H31H

12. HIE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETTT

B

The charge comprises:

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
Underprovision of EIT in prior years

TERMEMAER(TREMEH])
BEFELEMSHBETR

PRC withholding tax on dividend % B 5k &9 B T8 0
distribution

Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENGH

Deferred taxation IEIEFE 18

(28,466) (15,226)
(1,511) (691)
(29,977) (15,917)
(3,788) 2,211)
(4,865) (3,754)
(38,630) (21,882)
(3,875) (953)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The PRC income tax is calculated at the applicable rates in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to EIT at 25% except
that Goldpac Secur-Card Zhuhai Limited (“Goldpac Secur-Card”)
was officially endorsed as a High-New Technology Enterprise from
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2013 and entitles the preferential
tax rate of 15%.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only the profits
earned by Goldpac Secur-Card prior to 1 January 2008, when
distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered with the
exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant to Articles 3
and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Implementation Rules,
dividend distributed out of the profit generated thereafter, shall be
subject to EIT at 10% or reduced tax rate if tax treaty or
arrangement applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement,
withholding tax rate on dividend distribution to the qualifying Hong
Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred tax liability on the
undistributed profits earned since 1 January 2008 have been
accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

BB R G TR FE Gt E R F E
#16.5%FF & °

o T 19 B8 18 R B A AR AR 4
AR R -

RRBE P EF R A IR26% B k%
EH EEHERTRR_FTN
F-A—RARBRE_T—=F+"A=
T-BALEREARERSH KM
¥ AERI5%NBEREK -

BEVBRIEBRHEELRE T H
(2008) FE 1SRt A AN - KRN IEE
EEEDER  RESHEREBEFRR
—ZET)N\F— A —HZAT BRI FE
ARBEMH Al BEBELEMRS
FROR B3 Ko7 sk & & e 48 Bl 28 91
BRE UWEREEMNFBEIRRE
BF - ZB3210% 3K (i B U 1 /e s T BE 8
A)RENREENDEMSH - BIK
HEHBEZE PRETFTEEKEEE
RARRBEMBENHEE A% B ZF
—EF - —HRERERA KD EMNE
HIECHESETD IR FHEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

B ZE2013F12H31H

12. Taxation (continued)

Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation as

follows:

12. 18 @)
FRERIEY HER B AFIE Y E D
T
2013 2012
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®TR ARBTF T

Profit before taxation

B 35 A1 A1) B

Tax at the applicable income

tax rate (Note)
Tax effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose

Tax effect of deductible
temporary difference not
recognised

Tax effect of tax concession

BERREHETED
BIE (ffiE)

PNE O R
2

BARTBANHH
=2

RHERR AR B
EHENTBEE

By -—RTEFAA

granted to a PRC subsidiary HEEENNETE
Tax effect of different tax rate EHMH KR AE R
of subsidiaries operating LER TR R AE
in other tax jurisdiction RMEMRIS &
PRC withholding tax on KB EF P
undistributed earnings TR
Underprovision of EIT in BEFELEMRSEH
prior years BETRE
Tax charge and effective tax FEMNBREZHR
rate for the year BERB X

Note: The rate applied is the applicable tax rate in the PRC where the operation

of the Group is substantially based.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB38,396,000 (2012: RMB32,024,000) in relation
to allowance for doubtful debts and obsolete inventories. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that the
temporary differences can be utilised.

(45,833)

(11,162)

(1,593)

22,750

2,507

(7,663)

(1,511)

(25.0) (34,487) (25.0)
(6.1) (2,020) (1.5)
3,264 2.4

(440) (0.3)

12,773 9.3

1,930 1.4

(3,164) (2.3)

(691) (0.5)

(22,835) (16.5)

et « BT F 3 75 2K 5 [B) B B E o P B Y

BAHE -

MR20135F12A31H "REBRE N
BREFTEREMNTNREREEZRER

A R #38,396,0007T (= F

——FAA

K #32,024,0007T ) = & 72 &£ A AT H108
ERMEZHRNORE IR WAERE
AAMBEREZEEREEHIRE

7o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#n © B 15 ¥R 7% B 5T (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31H
13. Dividends 13. BB
2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

2012 Interim — HK$24,322 per share 2012 Hl — B T BEPBIBEE
(declared on 30 May 2013 and based on 24,3227t (74201345 A30H & K
1,000 shares of HK$1 each) R #51,0008% - BRRABE1T)

2012 Interim — RMB71,972 per share 0126 - BREBERARE
(declared on 1 July 2013 and based on ~ 71,9727% (R 201347 A1 H &k =
1,000 shares of HK$1 each) R 5 1,0000% - FREE¥17T) = w
2011 Interim — RMB42,002 per share 0MERH - FREBERARE g
(declared on 12 April 2012 and based on 42,0027t (720124 A12H &k ° W
1,000 shares of HK$1 each) AR 4% 1,000/ - G R ABHE17T) 42,002 ~
2011 Interim — HK$8,327 per share 0MEHE - REBRABE i
(declared on 12 April 2012 and based on 8,327 7t (A 201244 A12H Bk - §
1,000 shares of HK$1 each) R 151,000/ - FEEE1TT) 6,678 =
E.,
Ll
[
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in MEPRE EEESIREE_FT— EF'H'
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 of HK$4.8 cents (2012: —FE+ A=t HIFEREKRE g
Nil) per share has been proposed by the Board of Directors and is FREBARBELISN(ZZE—=F A
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general &) BAEBRITHNFERRRS

meeting. LTEGSREME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

fx B B ¥5 ¥R 2% Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

14. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

14.

BRER

BRERNREFRNIIREAR QR FH
BEARENATHEANE

data:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARET T
Earnings EF
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings st E GRE R B AN EF]
per share (profit for the year attributable (2 F135 A A FE15 € E FI5E)
to owners of the Company) 140,825 115,113
’000 ’000
T %
Number of shares i - Q=
Weighted average number of FESREARRMNAEKRAN
ordinary shares for the purpose of INAE 39 A% 2k
basic earnings per share 509,771

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
— Pre-IPO share options (note 32)
— Over-allotment option (note 31(e))

BEMEEINTRARNEE
— B (R E W iE32)
—BEREESE(RAME316)

— Redemption Shares (note 31(b))

— &y BB (2 A K:310b)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of

AREEREEANMRAN
AN 7 35 BB

diluted earnings per share

572,992

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share has been determined on the
assumption that the subdivision of shares and capitalisation issue
as detailed in note 31 have been effective on 1 January 2012.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for 2012 because there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue during 2012.

AHEERER RN TR IE TS
EBRRBCRE  RRMEMFLN
BRAFRRENMCBETINR T —_F
—A—HE&ER-

MR -_F-—_FUYBBECHTER
B A EZ25BREERAN -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fm © B 15 R 2% B 5F ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥ BERRE
Furnitures,
fixtures and Motor Plant and Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
B RE
BF &S AE BERKE EEIR wat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE AR®TRT AR®TI AR®TR

THE GROUP rE

cosT R o

At 1 January 2012 n201291A1A 34,734 13,837 3,764 132,919 702 185,956 —_—

Additions RNE = 854 = 15,267 14,200 30,321 (@,

Disposals e - (78) - (2,662) - (2,940) N

Transfers 8 Jig = = = 4,876 4,876) = ﬁ
b

At 31 December 2012 R2012F 12 A31H 34,734 14,413 3,764 150,400 10,026 213,337 'gg

Currency realignment KRR = (4) ©) = = ©) =

Additions NE 5,176 3,432 318 20,209 20,402 49,5637 at

Disposals & - (748) (1,112) (9,384) - (11,244) §

Transfers i 15,256 — — 11,649 (26,905) - j
Il

At 31 December 2013 M2013%F 12 A31H 55,166 17,093 2,965 172,874 8523 251,621 "Iﬂ
i

DEPRECIATION ik ﬁ

At 1 January 2012 n20129F1A18 11,660 10,929 2,351 81,635 — 106,575 s

Provided for the year FEEBE 1,742 1,864 230 11,819 - 15,655

Eliminated on disposals & R Y - (273) — (1,933) - (2,2006)

At 31 December 2012 201212 A31H 13,402 12,520 2,581 91,521 - 120,024

Currency realignment BEBRE - (1) @) - - )

Provided for the year FEEERE 2,131 1,689 405 13,814 - 18,039

Eliminated on disposals & R 8 — (748) (1,112) (9,384) - (11,244)

At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 15,533 13,460 1,871 95,951 - 126,815

CARRYING VALUE BRHEE

At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 39,633 3,633 1,094 76,923 3,523 124,806

At 31 December 2012 R2012%F12A31H 21,332 1,893 1,183 58,879 10,026 93,313

The Group’s buildings are erected on land held under medium-term AEBREFEREFRBEEH T

land use rights in the PRC. FRERER LM E -



€10z Hoday [enuuy pajwi] dnois oedplon 9 [ [ J

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x 6 B ¥ ¥ R Bft 5F (@)

o

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

16. Land Use Rights

17.

The Group

The balance represents the prepayment of rentals for medium-term
land use rights situated in the PRC for a period of 50 years.

16. T it &

REH

BREUN T BFH0FN T Bt
ERENENES -

Intangible Assets 17. B EE
Trademarks
iR
RMB’000
AREF T
THE GROUP N E
COST R
Additions and balance at 31 December 2013 M2013FE12A31 8 » AE N EREE 18,318
AMORTISATION &5
Charge for the year and balance at 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H » X B M &4 193
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2013 R2013%F12 A31 H 18,125

On 15 November 2013, a trademark agreement was entered into
between Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL”, a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and controlled by the
then controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Company Mr. LU
Run Ting) and the Company, in respect of the trademarks
registered in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC, and pursuant to
which (i) GIHL agreed to transfer the trademarks to the Company at
a consideration of US$3 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB18.3 million), and (i) for the period from the date of the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and prior to the
date when the Company becomes the registered owner of the
trademarks, GIHL agreed to grant the Group an exclusive license to
use the trademarks at nil consideration.

These trademarks have finite useful lives and are amortised on a
straight line basis over the periods of 5 to 9 years.

20134511 B15H » & 3B = BB (=
B%) B R A E (TGIHL] & R & B B L8
EREALE AERMAERRBRER
AEEFEBELERE)BARQF
FAT—DEERE BRREE R
PIR AP B KREMEMEIZER T — &
E B GHL[RA & A 3,000,0003% & (#f
A A18,300,00 A R ) B F AR 7 58
RTAMmEEEAE FEBRRRAR
AREEBBRFEMZzZBREAR
AR AEIEEM#ESAZB -

HRAERNERERARBRS - £5
FOFAABERERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fx B B 5 ¥R R Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

18. Investments in Subsidiaries 18. RFREINKEE
The Company b NN
The balance represents unlisted capital contributions in subsidiaries HERIETFTALEENIELETE S K
at cost. Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note Ko RRQRF AR ZFBEM FESQ
39.
19. Inventories 19. 7 &
The Group :
rE N
2013 2012 o
RMB’000 RMB’000 il
ARBTRE ARETL ~
n‘ﬁ
B
Raw materils Rt 145,480 86,721 =
Work in progress E&m 7,586 5,196 z,
Finished goods X 118,796 53,637
— [
L]
145,554 i
.FH
.FH
H
20. Trade Receivables 20. E 5 W FIE
The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Trade receivables 2 5 e W IE
— Gemalto’s subsidiaries — Gemalto ) F A &
(as defined in note 37) (7 & R M =137) Y 8
— BOC's subsidiaries — R BRITREMN D I
(as defined in note 38) (E#& R KMI7E38) 38,565 45,037
— third parties —$%=75 132,419 127,908
Retentions held by customers BEEEHEENRER 23,081 10,358

194,075 183,311




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fm © B 5 ¥R 2 B 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013512H31H

20. Trade Receivables (continued) 20. E 5 FEWRIE @)

€10z Hoday [enuuy pajwi] dnois oedplon 8 [ [ J

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices are
normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers from date of
issuance while retentions held by customers are normally payable
between 6 months to 1 year by the customers from the date of
issuance of invoices. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on
the date of delivery of goods which approximated the respective
dates on which revenue was recognised:

HEFHNREREELRE B E
— BN E T BERFS0E E1508 K
HEEFXN MEFHEANRER—
BRBEHBEZASRT B —F
NBEEFXZfM T3 AESEIWKIE
(ENBRRERB EE R HHE (R
WK FER B HIARI) ©

The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000
AR TR

RMB’000
AR®T T

Age BR#R

0-90 days 0-90H

91-180 days 91-180 H
181-365 days 181-365 H

Over 1 year (note) — &= PR (K 5)

149,900 123,076
25,200 32,465
10,569 18,781

8,406 8,989

183,311

Note: Included in the above balance aged over one year at 31 December 2013
were retentions held by customers for sales of goods of RMB8,087,000 (31
December 2012: RMB1,712,000).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

At 31 December 2013, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are trade receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB5,107,000 (2012: RMB8,786,000) which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as continuous repayment was noted subsequent to the end of
the reporting period.

B : PR -—_F—=¢6+—_A=+—HK
B—FUTHESRBEFPRBERY
i1 # & /9 1R 8 5 % A K #8,087,000 T
(2012 KB A R#1,712,0007T) °

AEBYERZFERTATMAER

[}
am °

R—ZE—=%+=-_F=+—H &&
EZE BB RBLAGTPRIEEEDRE
B A R #5,107,0007T (2012F & A R
#8,786,0007T) K E 5 B FIE - % F
RERFEBHPHEAE  BAEE N
AR EEIBETIREE W BER R
EHRBEEBWEIER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#x 6 B 7% ¥ R Bt 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 H31H

20. Trade Receivables (continued) 20. E 5 FE W FIE @)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is CEEEBERRENE ZEKZENE
as follows: BN
The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
—
—
Age BR#R O
91-180 days 91-180 H 1,333 K
181-365 days 181-365 B 6,851 s
Over 1 year —F L 319 602 ﬂ
B
8,786 a
&
5
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group EE T E 5 MR IE & 1] W e 14 & - =
monitors change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since AREHEEESREBRBEEERE ,!)ﬂ'i
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors BREEERREEREBHNES - [
of the Company considered that the concentration of credit risk is ARAREERR BREPEMERX L'&
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. REE@AE EERBRETPEEER - g
No interest is charged on trade receivables. Allowances on trade B S5 RWHKEL B - B 5 EWRR
receivables are made based on estimated irrecoverable amounts EWREBEDRBEHEEE mLRERS
from the sales of goods or provision of services by reference to T TR ESEEL EFER
past default experience and objective evidences of impairment EREEANLBRIREEERKZFRE
determined by the difference between the carrying amount and the ERMNEBBNMRKBEERER
present value of the estimated future cash flow discounted at the EMEEZEECHNXRBRERE -

original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

20. Trade Receivables (continued) E 5 EWRE @)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: REEREEHHOT -
The Group
AKE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARBEF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,000
Allowances recognised on receivables BLE IR FE SR ) B 4B 571
Bad debts written off By ER (18)

At the end of the reporting period, the allowance for doubtful debts
represented individually impaired trade receivables which have
been overdue for a long time and the directors of the Company
consider that the recoverability of these debts are low based on
historical experience.

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

RBERAR REBREEENRESR
ZRBFE ZEFHE B —BE
KA BEARAEERS REBHE
B WEZERBHEE TA -

BZRWFABERE NIAEHEEEE
BIEEEUINEEFENSHE -

The Group
wE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR

ARBTIT

THE GROUP REE
HKD BT
usb e

RMB AR

2,914
45




21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fx B B 5 ¥R R Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

Other Receivables and Prepayments 21, HEW R EFRIE
The Group
K&
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Rental and utility deposits HekXKERS 638
Tender deposits KRERES 2,288
Deposits paid to suppliers THGEHREENES 500
Other prepayments and deposits HEBEAREES 2,533
5,959

Amounts Due from Subsidiaries 22, EWWFRARNRIE
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on EHAEEH SEHEFTEEXE
demand. The following amounts denominated in currency other B -UTHRENGTEEERIERQF

than the functional currency of the Company. Thge 1 & o
The Company
AATF

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
HKD ok 9,750

—

N
k>
R
il
b
St
57
B
a
il
!
ol

=—&—

Ehd
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#x 6 B ¥ ¥ R Bft 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

23. Other Financial Assets 23. Ht&mEE
The Group
K&
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Financial assets designated at FVTPL EABAREBEFTABEZERD
CREE
— unlisted funds in the PRC —BEAFLTESR 185,000
— structured deposits placed in the PRC — B RERE TR 16,801

201,801

24. Fixed Bank Deposits, Pledged Bank Deposits 24. B EH1TFE ™M * £ #HETE

and Bank Balances and Cash R BMITEREEAS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and RITEHRERESBEAEENMFEEN

short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months ReER=(EAKE=1A AR HH

or less. The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills payables REBTR - BEBRITHERAEIFE

and carry interest at the prevailing market interest rate ranging from NEE EFEXZRBRTMEMNENR

2.8% to 3.1% (2012: 2.6% to 2.8%) per annum. 2.8% 2= 3.1% (2012 F : 2.6% £ 2.8%)
§+/%\ °

Bank balances held by the Group and the Company carry interest AEBEBRARBFERITERIZF

at the rate of 0.1% to 0.35% (2012: 0.1%) per annum. A E0.1% Z=0.35% (2012 4F : 0.1%) &f
& o

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group and the Company are AEBERARFBIFAENETRITER

denominated in RMB and carry interest at the rate of 3.1% to 3.3% LAARMBEHE - E31% E3.3%H) Fl] X

per annum. Included in the balance as at 31 December 2013, 58 2 2013F 12 A31 H LA M) 4 #4 -

RMB702,567,000 of fixed bank deposits are carried with original AR 1717 sk A R 702,567,000 E. &

maturity over three months. HBBm=1@A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fx B B 5 ¥R R Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

24. Fixed Bank Deposits, Pledged Bank Deposits 24. B8R T - EIFETE

and Bank Balances and Cash (continued) R BITESREEREE®@
Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts THREBEAERITEE LIRS P - 5t
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the BEEAMBEBRATETREEE
relevant group companies. o
The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 o
AREFT T ARET T N
(%)
k>
HKD ks = ﬁ
usD e 2,051 ~
EUR X 7T 206 o
RVB AR 614 3
&
!
The Company a
AATH |1
2013 2012 ¢
RMB’000 RMB’000 [F'%
AR® TR ARET T g
UsD =T 152
EUR B TT 150
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

25. Trade and Bills Payables

25 ESENRERESEE

The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Trade payables B 5 3R
— Gemalto’s subsidiaries — Gemalto®) 1 A A 216,095 129,123
— Gemalto’s related company — Gemalto /) 3 B A 7]
— DataCard Corporation — DataCard Corporation 22,813 15,258
— third parties —$= 99,118 96,184
338,026 240,565
Bills payables — secured BEBENZE 90,952 97,567
The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 to 180 days from REE-—BREMHENIEHE0E180H
its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade WEEH T ASRERARANE
and bills payables based on invoice date at the end of the reporting BEZRNFERENEEREZEEZEA S
period: 7Y BR e 0 AT
The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Age B 2
0-90 days 0%90H 297,221 281,626
91-180 days 912180 H 119,451 34,617
181-365 days 1812365 H 10,124 21,480
Over 1 year —4F LA 2,182 409

428,978 338,132




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. Trade and Bills Payables (continued)

26.

Included in trade and bills payables are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the

relevant group companies.

fr B B 75 ¥R R BT 5F (7@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

25 ESZENRERBNARE
()

BORNRERENEETBE T
NEREBRARINEERE AT
BERNEHE:

The Group
RE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
HKD BT 2,677
UsD ETT 37,914
EUR BT 154
JPY A L
Other Payables 26. H th fE 4 ;K IE
The Group
rE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T
Payroll and welfare payables FERE T & K48 A 27,327
Customers’ deposits EFERFES 18,748
Delivery and postage payables EHEERBE 9,953
Value-added tax payables FE - 15 (B FX 20,557
Listing expenses payables R ETA X -
Other tax payables HtpENBIE 894
Other payables H {th fE I 3B 4,971

—

N

O
k>
R
il
b
St
57
B
a
il
!
ol

=—&—

Ehd
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

26. Other Payables (continued)

6. H it & RE (@)

The Company
¥ NN
2013 2012
RMB’000
ARB TR

RMB’000
ARBETTT

Listing expenses payables
Other payables

FET £ R X
H Al & 3R

26

26

Included in other payables of the Group and the Company are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group companies.

AEENEMENFEFRRETIAE
REERARNEEBEAIIEETEN
TE -

The Group

RE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT T ARBEF T

The Company

Vi NN
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT T ARBEFIT
HKD BT 8,848 =
RMB AR - 26




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

fx B B 5 ¥R R Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

27. Government Grants 27. BUATF By
The Group
K&
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

—

N

N
k>
R
il
b
St
57
B
a
il
!
al

=—&—

Ehd

CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January »1A1H 5,300 5,500
Government grants received during the year £ (A A7 Uiz Bk /i % B 4,151 1,972
Released to profit or loss during the year FRBEMHEBF K EE (6,351) (2,172)
At 31 December MW12A31H 5,300
The Group
KEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT T AR T
Analysed as DITEATR -
— current — REA 3,000
— non-current — EREA 2,300
At 31 December MW12H31H 5,300

Goldpac Secur-Card received government grants throughout the
year from the relevant PRC local authorities as an incentive in
relation to technical know-how on the development of smart cards
and solutions services. Such government grants were recognised
in the profit or loss as other income, expenses, gains or losses
when the research was completed and the related verification
procedures have been completed and approved by the PRC local
authorities.

EHERERARARFATEERA
ERAIREIWBUS M EERE S 8
TREBRDERRMBEBRAZR - LR
B ERRREEF TR LERS
BRRFBAMSERKIESHE MK
A FERERFARNLE

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

28. Amounts due to Related Companies/ 28. EtEAEE D TS F A ERIE
Subsidiaries
The amounts represent unsecured balances due to subsidiaries ZARBIRE AR S HARERNF2QF M
and Gemalto and its subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period Gemalto N F 7~ &) B £ #4745 &5 B 48 &0
as follows: N
2013 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
bt & AR T T AREF T
THE GROUP rE
Dividend payable to Gemplus Jf& 1~f Gemplus % & (@)
Amount due to Gemplus J& {~F Gemplus 7 7B (b)
2013 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt &t AR® TR ARET T
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
Dividend payable to Gemplus & 15t Gemplus fi% 2. (@) 9,750
Amounts due to subsidiaries B FRRRIA (© 146
Notes: Hat -
(a)  Gemplus International S.A. (“Gemplus”) is a substantial shareholder of the (a  Gemplus International S.A. ([ Gemplus./) &
Company with significant influence and a limited liability company REFZEBAME THRERFEEE
incorporated in Luxembourg. The amount as at 31 December 2012 was HENFERRE - ZHNER2012F

(®)

©

interest-free, payable within six months from 31 December 2012,
denominated in HKD and was fully repaid in 2013.

The amount was interest-free and was repayable on demand. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, Gemplus agreed to release the
repayment of this amount. Such release was recognised as a contribution
to the Group.

The amounts was unsecured, interest-free, denominated in USD and was
fully repaid in 2013.

12H31H B2 8 - #2012 12H31H
FEGIE AT - LB KA B I #£2013
FREEE -

() BAERZENFEZKEE - #1-2013

12 H31H * Gemplus 6] B # % % 3 18
BB o WTTRERE A EE ML A
Bt o

(€ EHHEEEM  BE  UETFEILR
2013F BEIE#E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
fx B B 5 ¥R R Bft 5% (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F12A31H

29. Bank Loans 20, (RITER
The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Carrying amount repayable within one year — S N EEEREE 29,411
Carrying amount that contains a repayment SEENREEFEREE
on demand clause repayable BEIER ;
— within one year ——FR 2,046 O
— between one to two years ——EFEWER 2,046 K
— between two to five years —MEERFRN 3,590 ﬁ
"
Amounts shown under current liabilities mEBEEE TR ﬂ g
g
The variable rate bank loans carry interests at the borrowing rate FEHANERTEREFREARRTE E"
offered by the People’s Bank of China which were repriced monthly MMERE—EAINE=@AET
to every three months, or carry at 1% per annum below the lender’s ENTEE INEEFIERERERK JH',
prime rate for HKD. At 31 December 2013, the Group has variable A EBEFEA%E E - $K2013F 12 |
rate bank loans carrying interest at 2.3% to 2.7% (2012: 1.9% to A31H  A"EBEFHF RRITERIR L'H'
4.0%) per annum. FH E23%E2.7%(2012F : 1.9% = gl
4.0%) 5t & e =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
#x B B 5 3R R Bt 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

29. Bank Loans (continued) 29. RITEF @)
The following unsecured bank loans are guaranteed by: T mIKFABITETH NI A B E
R :
The Group
RE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARET T

Mr. LU Run Ting and The Government of EHEEER
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 7 /% 45 BII 17 Bk [% B AT

7,682

The guarantee given by Mr. LU Run Ting and The Government of 2013F 108 ' RITEREE%R - EF
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region was fully released FESTE KRB B RIITBUR BT IR 8
upon the settlement of the bank loans in October 2013. ERTE2EE -
At 31 December 2013, the Group has unutilised available credit PR2013F 12 A31H  AEBE KFHHT
facilities amounting to RMB204,303,000 (2012: RMB142,554,000). AEEME <A ARM204,308,000
(20124 : AR ¥#142,554,000) °
Included in bank loans are the following amounts denominated in THIHEFFARITER  LNEBESE
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group NAIMIE e M BB
companies.
The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR T
HKD ks 238
usD ETT 28,649
EUR BT 524

JPY HoT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 H31H

30. Deferred Taxation 30. IEER IH
The following is the deferred taxation recognised and movements U TNEEEIANELEHEREFAHN
thereon during the year: B
PRC
withholding tax
on undistributed
earnings
R 5 BB R
FEREH o
RMB’000 w
AR T ;
R
e
THE GROUP rE ﬁ
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1 H 2,750 s
Charged to profit or loss during the year FRFAB=® 953 §
s
At 31 December 2012 R20124F12 A31H 3,703 al
Charged to profit or loss during the year FANEAEE= 3,875 | );l
Al
|
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 7,578 EFIFI[
.m
H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013512H31H

31. Share Capital 31. A
Number of
ordinary
shares Par value Amount
TEREE H{E oL
Notes ’000 HK$ HK$'000
(k=3 + S B BT T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2012 and R2012F1 H1HH
31 December 2012 2012412 A31 H 10 1.000 10
Shares subdivision RZ 17 3% 41 (@) 9,990 0.001 —
Increase in authorised 3 INE TE A% AN
share capital @) 3,990,000 0.001 3,990
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12 A31H 4,000,000 0.001 4,000
Issued and fully paid: KT REE -
At 1 January 2012 and 7K20124F1 A1 8 #
31 December 2012 2012412 A31 H 1.000 1
Shares subdivision % 17 7 48 (@) 1,176 0.001 =
Reclassification of share 1% 15 [ B & 75
repurchase obligation (b) — 0.001 —
Capitalisation issue B AR B1T © 598,823 0.001 599
Issue of shares on global offering & Bk 2 & 79 A% 15 (d) 200,000 0.001 200
Issue of shares on exercise 1B =8 e B% 4 B2 1T AR 1D
of over-allotment option (e) 30,000 0.001 30
830,000 0.001 830
RMB’000
AREF T
Shown in the financial statements as ERNIAYZ B B
— at 31 December 2013 — R 2013412 A31H 653

— at 31 December 2012 — R20125612 431 H 1




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

31. Share Capital (continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

©

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions passed on 28 October 2013,
every share of HK$1 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company was subdivided into 1,000 shares of HK$0.001 each and the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$10,000
divided into 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 each to HK$4,000,000
divided into 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 each by the creation of
3,990,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 each.

On 3 July 2018, the Company and BOCI Investment Limited (“BOCI
Investment”) entered into a share subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) where the Company issued and alloted 177 new ordinary
shares of HK$1.000 each of the Company to BOCI Investment for
RMB187,000,000, equivalent to HK$234,618,087.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, if the Company fails to meet
certain pre-determined conditions, BOCI Investment shall have the right (but
not obligation) to require the Company to repurchase or redeem all or any
part of the shares held by BOCI Investment (the “Redemption Shares”).

Accordingly, such Redemption Shares of RMB187,000,000 was classified
as a financial liability upon initial recognition and carried at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. On 23 October 2013, BOCI
Investment executed a unilateral waiver of its redemption rights on certain
pre-determined conditions, while the rest of the pre-determined conditions
were lapsed upon listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing”) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group recognised approximately RMB11.5 million of non-cash finance
costs in the profit or loss in respect of these share repurchase obligations.

The carrying value of Redemption Shares was reclassified to the equity
of the Company upon the Listing, when the redemption obligation is
terminated.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions passed on 15 November 2013,
conditional on the share premium account being credited as a result of
the issue of the shares by the Company pursuant to the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, an amount of HK$598,823
which would then be standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company be capitalised and applied to pay up in full at par a total
of 598,823,000 shares of HK$0.001 each for allotment and issue to
holders of shares whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 15 November 2013 in
proportion (as nearly as possible without involving fractions) to their
respective then existing shareholdings in the Company. The above
resolutions became unconditional on 4 December 2013 when the
Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange.

HZE2013F 12 A31H

31. BR& @)

fif et

@

®)

©

R #£20134F 10 A28 A & i8 77 & T #
ZARARBFITHRARETHERE
L5 41,0008 % % ] {8 £ 0.001 5 T
BB (7 I % 28 42 3% 3,990,000,000 % #F
A& E1 160.001 & T 89 R 17+ 152 R BlE
E A& A #£ 10,000 T ( 73 /10,000,000
fig £ % [E 80.001 & 7T 89 B% 159 ) # 1 =
4,000,0007% 7T ( 73 % 4,000,000,000 /% £
AR B 1B0.0018 TTHIBR17) °

20137 A3H + A 2 A 82 iR &
BRIBEFRRNAIEKTRDABER
FE((REwZE]) AR Al [AF R EER
REBREFTREZIT7THEBERE
BR17% T - A K ¥187,000,000, 18 & R
234,618,087 /8 7T °

WRIZFBIE a5 + 10 2 2 B] AR BEIR B R Lk
FREM  PREFKEFRA A
BE(XHEL)BKAAFBELE
[5] BT 5 2 A8 73 7P 2R B B I A BR 19
([FE R ])

ZE A K 187,000,000 B 6 % 17 B
BHERFE A D ERAEHBERE I
17 5 B AR E A BR - R20134F 10 A 23
H  PiRERRERRHNTED B
ZE R UL T ST AR A 1K FF T Y B B]
7 H £ B 7 5% 78 58 B9 1% 1 75 K 2 AR
B BT _E T 18 K3 o # 1L20134F 12 8
31 H + N5 B 5t 4t 25 5% 17 [0] 8 2% 7 A9 18
HEERNFE S HEREGA R
11,500,000 ©

BERDORAEEEFT DR ERA
b T R [ 3 T AR U AR Y BRAE

R #2013 11 150 & B 49 R F *
& RO EERREAR R AIRER R
R FTTEZEETRGMAKE -
5 B BE K 7] BR 17 a (8 BR A AR SRE
598,823/8 L & B B A - I A EHE
] 18 % 2 & 598,823,000k &7 it E (&
0.001 & 7T B BR 17 89 IR 5K + LA 12 R 2013
F11H16H S X2 RIEE 5K R AR
REMABBRGIFEAZEERFRA
R EIE1F R E 7 ) (55 A BE T3 I B
B)EEE (ki EHTHA L) BER
BITZERG o £ it RER2013F 12
H48 ARG REEX AT E7T.2 HEK 5
B A o

—

w

w
k>
¥
e
b
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17
B
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>
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

31.

32.

Share Capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 4
December 2013, the Company allotted and issued a total of 200,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each to the public at a price of
HK$5.39 per share pursuant to a global offering, by way of a sum of
HK$1,078,000,000 (equivalent to RMB847,478,000).

(e The over-allotment option was exercised on 20 December 2013 for the
issue of 30,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$5.39 per share, by
way of a sum of HK$161,700,000 (equivalent to RMB127,131,000).

All the shares which were issued during the year rank pari passu
with the then existing shares in all respects.

Share-based Payment Transactions

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a
written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 for the primary purpose of
recognise the contribution of certain employees and directors
made or may have made to the growth of the Group and/or
the listing of the Group on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, and will expire on 3 December 2019.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the pre-IPO share option scheme was 36,000,000,
representing 4.5% of the shares of the Company in issue
immediately upon completion of the listing of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November 2013,
upon payment of HK$1 by the grantee.

31.

32.

N
izt - (&)

@ & R A AR B R20183F12H4H R
Vs il R VN - e ol
% & 77200,000,000 % #7 & & Bt & A%
E E0.001B L RIEZHEERA
BT RE39B T BT #EF
42 {8 1,078,000,000% 7T ( #T & A &R ¥
847,478,000) °

e AR AEELRER013F12H20H
# 77 » 4£30,000,000 % 7K A # A8 5.39%
TT 7T E P4 (E 161,700,000 T (#7
A A R #127,131,000) -

FAEEERTNRG S FEERE
BT AR SRS

UBRGBAERNNARS

(@) BEXRAFHBERNBRE

2013%F 11 A156H A QA Al K&
BBTRUETEERESHE
MEBATREEAEER A%
ERERTER EMIERNE
HRE URBERARZERA TS
RAFRBEERERETE - R
2019 12 H3H EI & -

MR2013F12A31H  EE X AR
BERERTE TERE RAE
& 15 8 # 2 /36,000,000 ' £
RERNRRBBEEER BB
FIREBEEEZRITHORMDEEE
B4.5% °

R B IR R 4 7B TE2013F 11
A19B A A1 B TR BAR AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. Share-based Payment Transactions (continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees and movements in
such holding during the year:

For the year ended 31 December 2013

& O\
fr B

B} %% ¥R X Bft 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

(%)

2. LR ABERHNXARS

(@) BEXRLHBENBRE

(%)

TREBARAEZREEH
BEREREREFANEE

& 1L 2013512831 H

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted At
Exercise price  1January during the 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2013 year 2013
20135 2013
REBH HEH TS THEERE 118 SRARHY 12A318
Directors
B
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2014 to HKD2.71 — 1,640,000 1,640,000
18 November 2014 3 December 2019
2013411 A 198 2013F 11 198 & 2014F11 19 &
2014411 A 18H 2019412 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2015 to HKD2.71 — 1,640,000 1,640,000
18 November 2015 31 December 2019
2013411 A19A 201311 B19R & 201511 19 &
2015% 11 A 18H 2019F 12 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2016 to HKD2.71 — 1,640,000 1,640,000
18 November 2016 3 December 2019
201311 A 198 2013F 11 A19A & 2016F 11 A19A &
201611 A 18H 201912 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2017 to HKD2.71 - 1,640,000 1,640,000
18 November 2017 3 December 2019
2013411 A19H 2013511 19 & 201711 B19R &
201711 A18H 201912 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2018 to HKD2.71 — 1,640,000 1,640,000
18 November 2018 3 December 2019
201311 A 198 2013F 11 A19A & 2018F 11 B19A &
2018411 A18H 2019412 A3H

8,200,000 8,200,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

32. Share-based Payment Transactions (continued)

32. LR AER

XX 5

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

(&)

() BEXRLHBENBRE

(%)

# 1E2013FE12 831 8 (&)

Number of share options

BREHE
At Granted At
Exercise price  1January during the 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2013 year 2013
20135 2013 F
REBH HEH TR THEERE 118 ERARH 12A318
Employees
(3]
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2014 to HKD2.71 — 5,560,000 5,560,000
18 November 2014 3 December 2019
201311 A19H 2013F 11 19 & 2014F11 19 &
2014411 A 18H 2019412 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2015 to HKD2.71 — 5,560,000 5,560,000
18 November 2015 31 December 2019
2013411 A19H 201311 B19R & 201511 B19A &
201511 A18H 2019F 12 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2016 to HKD2.71 — 5,560,000 5,560,000
18 November 2016 3 December 2019
201311 A19H 2013F 11 A19A & 2016F 11 A19A &
2016411 A18H 201912 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2017 to HKD2.71 — 5,560,000 5,560,000
18 November 2017 3 December 2019
2013411 A19H 2013511 19 & 201711 B19R &
201711 A 18R 201912 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 19 November 2018 to HKD2.71 — 5,560,000 5,560,000
18 November 2018 3 December 2019
201311 B19H 2013F11 A19R & 2018F11 A19R &
2018411 A18H 2019412 A3H
— 27,800,000 27,800,000
Total
Fx — 36,000,000 36,000,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

32. LRODABERNXARS
(&)

32. Share-based Payment Transactions (continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) BEXRABERERNBEREE

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at
RMB69,935,000 (equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using the
Binominal Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

—

Share price HK$4.52 i (B 4,527 TT &]o
Exercise price HK$2.71 T1EE 27187 K>
Expected life 6 years TEEE 64F ﬁ
Expected volatility 46.9963% T8 B R 1R 46.9963% Qﬁ
Expected dividend yield 1.0822% TEHA IR B = 1.0822% oo
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426% 4% 3 g A1) 3= 1.2426% :ﬁ
Fair value per option HK$2.4250 to HK$2.4791 1 B8 ) #e 2.42508 L & &
A 247913 7T 5

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable comprises in the same
industry. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB3,800,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

(%)

M2013F 12 A81H It » F E &%
ETHEREAAREFRA-EA
HETEEAFELAEAR
# 69,935,000 ( £ 72 88,954,000 7%
Jo)  RABR AT :

8 B R 18 R 1R SL R R Ko P B R
TTRMAE R IERE R - ZER
FAZERSHERE  REE
BENREMGE  RIFEEZEMLE
TERITARERNTE -

#H IF2013F 12 A31 8 » "&EE 5
KRR TEREARYABAR
# 3,800,000 °

=—&=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE2013F12H31H

32. Share-based Payment Transactions (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme, approved by
the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15 November 2013,
are substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

()  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange; and

(i) the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of offer to grant.

(i)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at their discretion and will not be lower than
the highest of: (a) the closing price of the ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange at the offer date, which
must be a trading day; (b) the average closing price of
the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (c) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

As at 31 December 2013, no options have been granted or
agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

32. LRDAERNARS

(&)

(b)

R &

R2013FE 11 A15E BB AR E
RERAAENERETSEE
IR B X AR B E BRI T
EIRBAAR - A TIEZHEBIN

) BRERHEAKETFHSE
BARRNBERZEE 2
B R B E10% - &

(i) & —E121E A 2 A 2
ZAREZH BTEEE
2EENRaEBIEHE
BEETROHE1% -

iy THEEEEAARAES
BEmEBETeERZES
B @QEBBREBRIMEN
BR5BUWERE: bEHER
FrEEEEB 8 R E
EEHMETBRUEBE: K
CARRRBMHEE -

HZE2013F 1231 H i EER
BELHRAEEFRE ZERE

sHal -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

33. Reserves 33. w®1E
Share Retained
Share options profits
premium reserve (deficit) Total
7R 5 B A A
R EE BRERE (FRF) R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTET ARBTRT

THE COMPANY ¥ YN
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1 H 43,623 4,229 47,852
Profit and total comprehensive  4E € K| B M 4% & YA

income for the year — 48,660 48,660
Dividends recognised as R K E

distribution - (48,680) (48,680)
At 31 December 2012 2012612 A31H 43,623 4,209 47,832
Profit and total comprehensive  4E & & M 42 & YA

income for the year — 56,273 56,273
Issue of shares BITR S 974,428 — 974,428
Capitalisation issue &AL BT (471) = (471)
Issue of Redemption Shares BITHERGD

(note 31(b)) (22 K1:#31(b) 187,000 = 187,000
Reclassification of Redemption & Bl i% 15 & 5 #A

Shares (note 31(b)) (22 K1:#31(b) (187,000) = (187,000)
Reclassification of o EERES L

share repurchase obligations (2 B Ht731(b))

(note 31(b)) 198,513 — 198,513
Transaction cost attributable to 55 70 8 17 IX 7 &9

issue of shares R 5 KA (43,909) = (43,909)
Recognition of equity-settled NERSEEARD A

share-based payment EH IR B FER — 3,800 — 3,800
Dividends recognised as R 5 AL AR B

distribution — (91,693) (91,693)
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 1,172,184 3,800 (81,211) 1,144,773

cvyenwEns®s L |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

34. Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments for office
premises under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

34, REHFERE

AEBEEREAA
KA E MR - A KB AGEE TR
HELHESFEYEMBRRRKE
HEMRE JHMT :

The Group
rE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTIT

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

14

#
3
H

it

H

_FH~

2,432
984 733

3,165

Leases are negotiated for a term of 1 to 3 years and rentals are
fixed for an average of 2 years.

The Company has no significant operating lease commitments at
the end of the reporting period.

HMO23FESHEmTE He¥FHE
M F R B E A

MNABEHR RRARIEEARKER
BRI -
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Capital Commitments

fm © B 15 R 2% B 5F ()

For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ZE 2013912 H31H

35. EARAIRE

The Group

rE
2013
RMB’000
ARB TR

2012
RMB’000
ARBETTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

BRAMENE BEIRRED
BEATMERRGA B ERE
NEE R EARNF X

7,690

The Company has no significant capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group’s qualifying employees in Hong Kong participates in
MPF in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are held separately from
those of the Group in fund under the control of trustee. Under the
MPF scheme in Hong Kong, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000 per annum (increased to HK$25,000 per
annum effective from 1 June 2012). Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme are to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

36.

TIF /tg

RAHE R AR A EENE AR A

iR K18 A 5t 2

ARBINBENEREELNEER
Be-mEeNESEAEEES D
MEBXEABCES FERESF
2R BRITHEERBENHNFTEHASR
EERBKRANSY  SF AT AHERA
W A 7B #20,0007T & EBR (#2012 6
H1 BN /325,000% 7T) © # It 5t 2
R R BB

AEERTEAENGHBERZMA
B B AE 1 RO B R B IR AR IR AR A
g -ZFEWBARARAETEMAREN
— FELL B AR AR AR I A B R o AR
B RIREN G BN -RETERE
At Bl E R AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 A31H

37. Related Party Transactions 37. BB AR S

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group has the
following significant transactions with related parties:

B ETRARENRIBEINZZ R
REERSN AREERN AEBEEBB
BATEARRS

The Group
rE
2013 2012
Relationship and name of related company Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000

BARBBAREE REMEE

AR®T T ARBTIT

Companies controlled by Gemalto N. V.
(“Gemalto”) (Note):

Gemalto N. V. ([ Gemalto )
EHIE AR (M)

Gemalto Pte. Ltd. Purchase of materials

BERERM#

Shanghai Axalto IC Card Technologies Co., Ltd. Purchase of materials
(LBHEIRE RRMABRAE) fEE R #

18,771

112,749

Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus throughout both years.

Bt iE - Gemalto 2 1R 1% fef 8 )% 7 1€ NYSE P £ B
/32 B B AT FINYSEE R Z B X 5
B L8 2 ] o B & #Gemplus A 18] F
=



37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Related Party Transactions (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, pursuant to a sales and
purchase agreement entered into between Goldpac Secur-Card, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and ZKg8ma&HESL R

AR A7 (Goldpac Golden Card Equipment Co. Ltd, “Goldpac
Golden Card”), a company which was controlled by the Company’s
then controlling shareholder, Mr. LU Run Ting at the time of
entering into the agreement, Goldpac Secur-Card acquired the
entire equity interests in Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
(“Goldpac Guangzhou”), a shell company at the time of acquisition
from Goldpac Golden Card for a consideration of RMB1,000,000.
The acquisition was effective on 15 May 2012, upon approval by
the PRC government authority. The consideration was settled by
the assignment of the amount due from Goldpac Golden Card in
the books of Goldpac Guangzhou to Goldpac Secur-Card.

On 29 March 2011, a trademark license agreement was entered
into between GIHL as the licensor and the Company, Goldpac
Secur-Card and Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited,
being subsidiaries of the Company as the licensees pursuant to
which GIHL agreed to grant the licensees an exclusive license to
use certain trademarks up to the date the of commencement of
listing of the ordinary shares of the Company on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange at nil consideration.

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents directors of the Company paid during the year are set
out in note 11.

Connected Party Transactions

Other than the transactions and balances with connected party
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group has the
following significant transactions with connected party.

Bank of China Limited (“BOC”) is a company established in the
PRC and whose shares are listed and traded on the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. BOC is the ultimate
holding company of BOCI Investment, who is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and is considered as a connected
person under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange since December 2013. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group has sold goods totaling
RMB185,089,000 to companies controlled by BOC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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39. Subsidiaries 39. A&

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-

owned by the Company, at 31 December 2013 and 31 December

2012 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

FRAAER

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operations

DA R AR R

R2012412 A31 B &20134 12 A 31
B #ARRIEZEREEN T ARG

N T

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTRBEZRA
ZMESHEHE

Principal activities

TEXBHE

Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited*

EREBRERERAF"

Goldpac Secur-Card
Zhuhai Limited*

KEMEBERER
BRRAR"

Goldpac Smart Card
(Guangzhou) Limited
(“Goldpac Guangzhou”)*

BT ESER
BRAA"

Notes:

*

#

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

Directly held by the Company.

Hong Kong

)

PRC
for a term of 50 years
as a wholly foreign owned
enterprise commencing
21 June 1995

$
/BN 1995F6 A21 8 -
ERINEBEE RE R/
504

PRC
limited liability company

&
EREERA

Goldpac Guangzhou was acquired by the Group in May 2012.

end of the year or at any time during the year.

Ordinary shares
— HK$500,000

AR
— 500,000 7T

Registered capital
— US$21,000,000

FMES
— 21,000,000 7T

Registered capital
— RMB1,000,000

FMES
— 1,000,000 A R #&

it

* 2 AN

Sales of smart cards carrying
personal identity and other
payment solution services

HEEBEAMLATH
20 B N B E b 75 AROR
7 RIR

Manufacture and sales of
smart cards carrying
personal identity and other
payment solution services

EEEHEABEAL
NEREREREEAM
ST R ROR AR

Sales of smart cards carrying
personal identity and other
payment solution services

HEAEFREAMCARH
2 Be R fth 32 N R OR
7 RIR

AEZEFAE -
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